
AGENDA (Amended)
Regular City Council Meeting 

 Monday, August 7, 2023, 6:00 PM 
Council Chambers, 116 First Street, Neptune Beach, Florida 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
2. AWARDS / PRESENTATIONS / RECOGNITION OF GUESTS  

A. Council Confirmation of the City Manager's Recommendation of New Chief of Police/Director
of Public Safety 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
A. June 5, 2023, Regular City Council Meeting

June 20, 2023, Special & Workshop City Council Meeting
June 28, 2023, Special City Council Meeting
July 17, 2023, Special & Workshop City Council Meeting
July 19, 2023, Emergency City Council Meeting
July 26, 2023, Special City Council Meeting 

4. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  
5. COMMUNICATION / CORRESPONDENCE / REPORTS  

 Mayor

 City Council

 City Manager

 City Attorney

 City Clerk
 Police Chief

6. CONSENT AGENDA / NONE  
7. VARIANCES / SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS / DEVELOPMENT ORDERS  

A. DP23-01 Application for Final Development Order approval as outlined in Chapter 27, Article
II, Division 2 of the Unified Land Development Code of Neptune Beach for Pierre’s LLC for
the properties known as Pete’s Bar at 117 First Street, 120 & 110 Lemon Street (RE#
172782-0000, 172783-0000 & 172784-0000) 

8. ORDINANCES  
A. Ordinance No. 2023-04, Second Read and Public Hearing, An Ordinance Amending the

Operating Budget for the City of Neptune Beach, Florida for Fiscal Year 2023, Beginning
October 1, 2022, and Ending September 30, 2023.  

B. Ordinance No. 2023-05, First Read and Public Hearing, An Ordinance Amending Section 6-
31, Regarding Dogs on the Beach to Establishing Consistency with Atlantic Beach; Clarifying
Leash Requirements; Requiring Certain Protections for Dogs; Providing for Severability;
Providing for an Effective Date.

p. 3

p. 14.1

p. 30

p. 46

p. 54

PH

PH

NBCityClerk
Highlight



C. Ordinance No. 2023-06, First Read and Public Hearing, An Ordinance of the City of Neptune
Beach, Florida, Amending Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-377, Competitive Bidding; Written
Contracts, Providing for Severability; and Providing an Effective Date. 

9. OLD BUSINESS  
A. Consideration to Award CONB 2023-02, City Hall Roof Repair   

10. NEW BUSINESS  
A. Consideration to Approve Bidding of Wastewater Plant 2 Improvements  
B. Consideration of Approval of Phase II, Plant 1 Operational Improvements Study, with Hazen

and Sawyer, P.C. 
C. Land Development Code Updates:

1. Section 27-332, Home-Based Businesses
2. Section 27-335 and 27-336, Recreational/Commercial Vehicles in Residential

Districts

D. Initiation of Civil Service Board  
E. Resolution No. 2023-08, A Resolution of the City of Neptune Beach, Florida, Instructing Staff

and Lobbyists to Actively Pursue Additional Funding Mechanisms from the City of
Jacksonville; Providing for Adoption of Recitals, Repeal of Prior Inconsistent Resolutions,
and Council Decisions, Severability, and an Effective Date 

11. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
12. ADJOURN  

 Residents attending public meetings can use the code 1LWE to validate their 
parking session at no cost. After 5:30 on the date of the meeting, follow these 
steps: 

Make sure you are parked in a North Beaches public parking space – we can’t 
validate valet parking or parking in private lots. 

 To use a kiosk: Using a nearby kiosk, press the Start button and then select 2 to
enter your plate and the validation code.

 To use the Flowbird app: Tap the nearest yellow balloon and tap “Park here.”
From the payment screen, select “Redeem a code” at the top. Confirm your
information and tap “Purchase” – the price will show “Free.”

p. 59

p. 63

p. 116

p. 117

p. 120

p. 125

p.130

PH



 JUNE 5, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 1 
 

 

 

 
 

 
MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JUNE 5, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 

NEPTUNE BEACH CITY HALL 
116 FIRST STREET 

NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA 32266 
 Pursuant to proper notice, a Regular City Council Meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Neptune Beach was held on Monday, June 5, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., at Neptune 
Beach City Hall, 116 First Street, Neptune Beach, Florida 32266. 

   
Attendance: IN ATTENDANCE: STAFF: 
 Mayor Elaine Brown  

Vice Mayor Kerry Chin 
Councilor Lauren Key  
Councilor Nia Livingston 
Councilor Josh Messinger 
 
 
 
 

Interim City Manager Richard Pike 
City Attorney Zachary Roth 
Interim Police Chief Michael Key 
Community Development Director Heather Whitmore 
Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun 
Deputy Public Works Director Colin Moore 
City Clerk Catherine Ponson 
Interim CIO Yoan Gutierrez 
 

Call to Order/Roll 
Call/Pledge 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

  
 Mayor Brown announced the passing away of the City’s IT Director, Miklos Stoffel. He 

had been with the City for five years and did a great job in that position. He was very 
well-liked and will be missed. 

Proclamation Presentation of Proclamation. Mayor Brown presented a proclamation declaring the 
first Friday of June as National Gun Violence Awareness Day. Representatives from 
Moms Demand Action were present to receive the proclamation. 

  
Beaches Town 
Center 
Presentation 

Beaches Town Center Presentation. Deanne Dunlop, Beaches Town Center 
Merchants Association President,  presented information about the Beaches Town 
Center Agency (BTCA). She reported that they are a nonprofit, community board that 
works for the improvement of the shared Atlantic Beach/Neptune Beach Central 
Business District. Their goal is to preserve the unique character blend of two 
traditional seaside neighborhoods joined by a cultural town center enjoyed by 
residents, merchants, and visitors. 

  
Beaches Town 
Center Pressure 
Washing 

Beaches Town Center Pressure Washing. Richard Arthur, Beaches Town Center 
Agency Treasurer,  stated that the project of the pressure washing of the sidewalks in 
the Beaches Town Center (BTC) has been in the works for some time. Krystal Klean 
was awarded a contract in St. Johns County. The price for Neptune Beach, including 
gum removal is $7,409.25.  

  
  
  

3



 JUNE 5, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 2 
 

 

 Made by Messinger, seconded by Chin. 
  
  MOTION:            TO APPROVE THE NEPTUNE BEACH PORTION OF THE 

KRYSTAL KLEAN PROPOSAL TO CLEAN THE BEACHES 
TOWN CENTER,  INCLUDING GUM REMOVAL 

  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:  5-Key, Livingston, Messinger, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:  0 
  
Swearing In-
Sergeant William 
E. Torres 

Swearing In - Sergeant William E. Torres.  Mayor Brown administered the Oath of 
Office to Sergeant William E. Torres 

  
 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  
Minutes Made by Messinger, seconded by Livingston. 
  
 MOTION:     TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING: 

 
May 1, 2023, Regular City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2023, Workshop City Council Meeting 

  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes: 5-Livingston, Messinger, Key, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:    0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
FY21 Audit Report FY21 Audit Report Update. Interim City Manager Richard Pike reported that CFO 

Jaime Hernandez had explained to him that the $226,000, which was brought up at 
the FY21 audit presentation, has been located and is now included in that report. This 
was a result of a glitch in software that had been in use and the City is implementing a 
new ERP system and we should not have this issue in the future. 

  
 PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
Public Comments Miriam Cinotti, 1031 Marvone Lane, Neptune Beach, spoke regarding the Senior 

Center 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization, and the Community Garden. 
  
 Pat Hazouri, 207 Florida Boulevard, Neptune Beach,  Spoke regarding getting more 

information and getting questions answered. 
  
Interim City 
Manager Report 

Interim City Manager Pike reported that due to an employee retention plan put into 
place with support of Council, the Public Works Department has gone from having 16 
vacancies to three vacancies. Public Works will be starting on sidewalks and parking 
on the west side of 5th Street in Jarboe Park. The wooden bridge will be replaced with 
a 30-foot aluminum bridge. Construction on the Senior Center porch will begin on 
June 12, 2023. 

  
Interim Police 
Chief Report 

Interim Police Chief Michael Key reported that June 3, 2023, was Eddie Bounds Day 
by proclamation. He presented the May crime analysis report. He reminded everyone 
to keep their bicycles locked up. Dancin’ in the Streets held on May 20, 2023, was a 
success with no noteworthy events to report. 

  
  

4



 JUNE 5, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 3 
 

 

 Interim Police Chief Key gave an update on the yellow curb painting on First Street. 
The curb painting is a form of a traffic control device. He and the Public Works 
Director have been working to remedy the situation and creating a more visible 
approach. Everything has been weighed on public safety and the need for beach 
parking 

  
 VARIANCES / SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS / DEVELOPMENT ORDERS / NONE 
  
 ORDINANCES 
  
Ord. No. 2023-02, 
Tree Trimming and 
Removal  

Ordinance No. 2023-02, Second Read and Public Hearing.  An Ordinance Creating 
Section 14-12, Chapter 14 (Offenses); Governing Waste from Tree Trimming and 
Removal; Providing for Severability; Providing an Effective Date. 

  
Public Hearing Mayor Brown opened the public hearing. There being no comments from the public, 

the public hearing was closed. 
  
 Made by Messinger, seconded by Key. 
  
 MOTION:        TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2023-02, CREATING SECTION 14-12, 

GOVERNING WASTE FROM TREE TRIMMING AND REMOVAL ON 
SECOND READ 

  
 Roll Call Vote 
 Ayes:  5-Messinger, Key, Livingston, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:  0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
Ord. No. 2023-03, 
Smoking in Public 
Parks and 
Beaches 

Ordinance No. 2023-03, Second Read and Public Hearing.  An Ordinance of the City 
of Neptune Beach, Florida, Creating Sections 18-10 through 18-13, Article II, 
Smoking, Chapter 18, Streets, Sidewalks and Other Places; Prohibiting Smoking and 
Vaping in Public Parks and Beaches within the City; Providing for Conflicts; Providing 
for Severability; and Providing an Effective Date. 

  
Public Hearing Mayor Brown opened the public hearing. 
  
 Alexi Gonzales, 12566 Brookchase Lane, Jacksonville, member of Tobacco Free 

Jacksonville and Duval County Students Working Against Tobacco Club, spoke in 
favor of the ordinance.  

  
 There being no further comments from the public, the public hearing was closed. 
  
 Made by Livingston, seconded by Key. 
  
 MOTION:        TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2023-03, CREATING SECTIONS 18-10 

THROUGH 18-13, ARTICLE II, SMOKING, CHAPTER 18, STREETS, 
SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES; PROHIBITING 
SMOKING AND VAPING IN PUBLIC PARKS AND BEACHES 
WITHIN THE CITY ON SECOND READ 

  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:  5-Key, Livingston, Messinger, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:  0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
  

5



 JUNE 5, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 4 
 

 

Waste Pro Waste Pro Discussion. City Attorney Zachary Roth reported that the City had received 
a proposed rate on a six-year extension. The current contract expires on October 31, 
2023, and then this would commence on November 1, 2023, if moved forward. There 
was also the issue of the franchise fee and fuel recovery fee. It was discovered that 
Waste Pro was not remitting the franchise fee and the City was not paying the fuel 
recovery fee. After an analysis, the results resulted in the City owing about $170,000. 
Waste Pro has offered to waive that amount if Council moves forward with the 
extension as proposed. 

  
 Council discussion included frequency of service, pricing from other vendors and 

service levels. 

 Steve Diebenow, on behalf of Waste Pro, stated there were other options for lowering 
the rate, such as the franchise fee. There is consensus that $170,000 is owed to 
Waste Pro. Waste Pro has put their best foot forward. The rate proposed is in line 
with recent bid in the region and have offered to waive the amount that is owed. If 
Council needs more time, they can work that out but not so much that is becomes 
difficult to do an RFP. 

  
 Made by Messinger, seconded by Livingston. 
  
 MOTION:           TO EXTEND THE CONTRACT FOR AN ADDITIONAL 30 DAYS 

UNDER THE CURRENT TERMS AND COUNCIL AGREES TO 
NEGOTIATE WITH  WASTE PRO AND STAFF IN THE NEXT 30 
DAYS 

  
 Mr. Diebenow stated that Waste Pro would agree to a 30-day extension until 

November 30, 2023. He added that if there is a solution in two or three weeks, he 
would hope a special meeting could be held in order to address any additional issues. 

  
 Made by Key, seconded by Messinger. 
  
 AMENDED MOTION:        IF NEGOTIATIONS ARE NOT MADE WITHIN THE NEXT 

30 DAYS, AN RFP WOULD BE ISSUED       
  
 Amended Motion Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes: 5-Livingston, Messinger, Key, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:    0 
  
 AMENDED MOTION CARRIED 
  
 Original Motion as Amended Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:     5-Messinger, Key, Livingston, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:    0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
City Hall Roof City Hall Roof Update. Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun reported the City Hall 

roof replacement bid had been modified since no bids were received the first time. He 
is recommending bidding the project now and see what the solar panel reinstallation 
would take and make a decision on the payback. The engineer has suggested the 
entire project could take six weeks and due to storm season, the reinstallation of the 
solar panels could be delayed.  

  
  
  
  
  

6



 JUNE 5, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 5 
 

 

 NEW BUSINESS  
  
Surplus Items Surplus Items. Deputy Director of Public Works Colin Moore explained there were 

vehicles and equipment needing to be declared surplus in order to list for sale, 
including a street sweeper. 

  
 Made by Messinger, seconded by Chin. 
  
 MOTION:         TO APPROVE THE SURPLUS ITEMS, AS REQUESTED 
  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:   5-Key, Livingston, Messinger, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:  0 

 

  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
Ocean Vehicle 
Replacement 

Ocean Vehicle Replacement.  Interim City Manager Pike reported the current Ocean 
Rescue vehicle was discovered to be in disrepair. A replacement vehicle has been 
found that meets the requirements for use by Ocean Rescue. 

  
 Made by Chin, seconded by Livingston 
  
 MOTION:           TO APPROVE PURCHASE OF OCEAN VEHICLE REPLACEMENT 

 

  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:   5-Livingston, Messinger, Key, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:  0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
Utility Van Purchase of Utility Van. Mr. Calhoun stated that the City has recently filled the 

Maintenance Technician position. A maintenance utility van is needed to carry tools, 
parts and materials needed. Public Works is requesting to authorize a not-to-exceed 
amount of $55,000 in order to acquire a utility van.  

  
 Made by Messinger, seconded by Chin. 
  
 MOTION:        TO APPROVE A  NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $55,000 FOR 

THE PURCHASE OF A UTILITY VAN 
  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:     5-Messinger, Key, Livingston, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:    0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
Development of 
Stormwater Model 

Development of Stormwater Model. Mr. Calhoun advised that the stormwater 
engineering consultant, Jones-Edmunds, presented the strategic plan at the May 19, 
2023, Transportation and Infrastructure Planning Committee meeting. During the 
presentation the benefits of a stormwater model were presented and discussed. One 
of the more significant benefits of a stormwater model was in seeking various grants 
for improvement projects. The entire model is estimated at $160,000, with $50,000 
estimated in FY23 to focus first on Hopkins Creek improvements at Florida Boulevard 
and Forest Avenue. He added that he wanted to focus on Hopkins Street as it relates 
to Duval County putting together their FY24 budget together. Atlantic Beach drains 
through Hopkins Creek on the way to the ICW. 

  
  

7



 JUNE 5, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 6 
 

 

 Made by Livingston, seconded by Messinger. 
  
 MOTION:      TO APPROVE  THE DEVELOPMENT OF A STORMWATER MODEL 

FOR THE CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH STORMWATER SYSTEM 
  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:  5-Key, Livingston, Messinger, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:  0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
Emergency Pump 
Work 

Potable Well #1 – Emergency Pump Work.  Mr. Calhoun reported that Potable Well 
#1 is not operable, leaving two operating wells. The motor and well pump must be 
removed from the well to diagnose the issue. To take advantage of the pump being 
removed, a video survey of the well condition will be performed. 

  
 Made by Key, seconded by Livingston. 
  
 MOTION:      TO APPROVE EMERGENCY AUTHORIZATION TO PULL WELL #1 

PUMP FOR REPAIR AND VIDEO LOG 
  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:   5-Livingston, Messinger, Key, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:  0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
RFP for Wellfield 
Investigative and 
Rehabilitation 
Work 

RFP for Wellfield Investigative and Rehabilitation Work.  Mr. Calhoun explained that 
the City currently operates three wells drawing from the Floridan Aquifer. The wells 
were constructed in 1938, 1971 and 1972 and range from 852 to 1,212 feet below 
surface. Licensed water well contractors would be solicited for services to inspect, 
test and rehabilitate each well as needed in accordance with a request for proposals 
(RFP) developed by our consulting engineer. 

  
 Made by Messinger, seconded by Key. 
  
 MOTION:  TO APPROVE STAFF TO FINALIZE RFP FOR WELLFIELD 

INVESTIGATIVE AND REHABILITATIVE WORK 
  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:    5-Messinger, Key, Livingston, Chin, and Brown 

Noes:    0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
 COUNCIL COMMENTS  
  
 Councilor Key commended Mr. Calhoun Interim City Manager Pike for getting things 

done and taking care of business. 

 
 Councilor Messinger agreed added complimented Deputy Public Works Director Colin 

Moore, Community Development Director Heather Whitmore, and Interim Police Chief 
Michael Key and staff for their hard work during this time. 

  
Adjournment There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
   

8



JUNE 5, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 7 

Elaine Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST:  

Catherine Ponson, CMC 
City Clerk 

Approved: ________ 

9



JUNE 20, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL  MEETING PAGE 1 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 

NEPTUNE BEACH CITY HALL 
116 FIRST STREET 

NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA 32266 
Pursuant to proper notice, a Special City Council Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Neptune Beach was held on Tuesday, June 20 , 2023, at 6:00 p.m., at Neptune Beach City Hall, 
116 First Street, Neptune Beach, Florida 32266. 

Attendance: IN ATTENDANCE: STAFF: 
Mayor Elaine Brown  
Vice Mayor Kerry Chin 
Councilor Lauren Key  
Councilor Nia Livingston 
Councilor Josh Messinger 

City Attorney Zachary Roth 
City Manager Richard Pike 
Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun 
CFO Jaime Hernandez 
Deputy Public Works Director Colin Moore 
Interim Police Chief Michael Key 
Senior Center Director Leslie Lyne 
HR Coordinator Jillian McCann 
Community Development Director Heather Whitmore 
City Clerk Catherine Ponson 

Call to 
Order/Roll 
Call/Pledge 

Mayor Brown called the Special Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and Councilor Key led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

City Manager 
Appointment 

City Manager Appointment. Mayor Brown reported that Council is pleased to have a new city 
manager coming in. Richard Pike us well-known and respected in the community.  

Councilor Key disclosed that voting on this matter could result in special, private gain for a 
relative of hers. She recused herself from voting. Form 8B, Memorandum of Voting Conflict for 
County, Municipal, and Other Local Public Officers, has been submitted and pursuant to F.S. 
Section 112.3143(4)(b), is incorporated into these minutes. 

Vice Mayor Chin pointed out a typographical error on Page 6 of the contract. The words “effective 
upon” had been repeated.  

Councilor Messinger pointed out that the salary is fair in keeping with what other city managers 
are making throughout coastal communities in Florida. He couldn’t be happier that Richard Pike 
will be the next city manager. Including the cost of the healthcare, it is a fair contract. The City is 
going to be in good hands for years to come. 

Made by Messinger, seconded by Chin. 

MOTION:    TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF RICHARD PIKE AS CITY MANAGER 

10



JUNE 20, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 2 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 4- Livingston, Messinger, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 
Abstain: 1-Key 

MOTION CARRIED 

Swearing In Mayor Brown administered the  Oath of Office to City Manager Pike. 

The  Southern 
Group 

Contract Agreement, The Southern Group.  Vice Mayor Chin stated he fully supports hiring The 
Southern Group and Jim Gilmore to provide the City with lobbying services from the City of 
Jacksonville and the State. He is highly connected and experienced. He will become our voice 
in getting the grant dollars we need to move forward with our infrastructure needs. 

Councilor Messinger agreed and added this further strengthens our efforts to get real 
infrastructure dollars. 

Made by Messinger, seconded by Chin. 

MOTION:           TO APPROVE THE CONTRACT AGREEMENT WITH THE SOUTHERN 
GROUP. 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 5-Messinger, Key, Livingston, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 

MOTION CARRIED 

Ord. No. 
22023-04, 
FY23 Budget 
Amendment 

Ordinance No. 2023-04, First Read and Public Hearing.  An Ordinance Amending the Operating 
Budget for the City of Neptune Beach, Florida for Fiscal Year 2023, Beginning October 1, 2022 
and Ending September 30, 2023. 

Public Hearing Mayor Brown opened the public hearing. There being no comments from the public, the public 
hearing was closed. 

City Manager Pike explained that is for the transfer of funds from the paid parking program to 
the police department as the paid parking is now under the police department. An officer is being 
paid to perform those duties. Monies are being transferred to offset that cost 

Mr. Pike confirmed Councilor Key’s inquiry this is the same amount that would have paid for the 
parking director and is being transferred to another department. 

Made by Messinger, seconded by Livingston. 

MOTION:            TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 2023-04, AMENDING OPERATING BUDGET 
FOR THE CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023, 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2022, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AT 
FIRST READ 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 5-Key, Livingston, Messinger, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

11



JUNE 20, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 3 

Task Order #2, 
UF Resiliency 
Grant 

Task Order #2, Master Research Agreement with University of Florida. Deputy Public Works 
Director Colin Moore explained that this is a grant agreement we received for $180,000 from 
Resilient Florida for a vulnerability assessment required by statute in order to apply for 
infrastructure funding for resiliency projects. The project is laid out in tasks and should be 
completed by April of next year. 

Made by Messinger, seconded by Livingston. 

MOTION:           TO APPROVE TASK ORDER #2 OF THE MASTER RESEARCH AGREEMENT 
WITH THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 5-Livingston, Messinger, Key, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

Potable Well 
#1-Emergency 
Geophysical 
Logging 

Potable Well #1-Emergency Geophysical Logging. Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun 
explained that on June 5, 2023, Council approved the emergency pulling of the failed pump at 
Well #1. He  is  asking for the approval of emergency geophysical logging of Well #1.  

Made by Messinger, seconded by Chin. 

MOTION:          TO APPROVE EMERGENCY SERVICES TO COMPLETE SERVICES WELL 
DRILLING, INC IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,500.00 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 5-Messinger, Key, Livingston, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 

MOTION CARRIED 

Well #5, 
Kimley-Horn 
Extension 

 Well #5-Extension of Supplemental Agreement #1 – Kimley-Horn. Mr. Calhoun explained this is 
for approval of moving forward with Well #5 construction and to extend Supplemental Agreement 
No. 1 for Consumptive Use Permitting(CUP) and well permitting and design services with Kimley 
Horn to July 31, 2025. 

Made by Messinger, seconded by Livingston. 

MOTION:        TO APPROVE CONSTRUCTION OF WELL #5 AND THE EXTENSION OF 
KIMLEY-HORN SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 5-Key, Livingston, Messinger, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 

MOTION CARRIED 

CIPP Project Cured in Place Project – 3rd Street 8” Sanitary Sewer and Bal Harbor Subdivision Stormwater 
Pipe. Mr. Calhoun explained this is for the rehabilitation of pipe using cured-in place pipe (CIPP) 
versus traditional excavation and PVC pipe. This includes full rehabilitation of the eight-inch 
sewer pipe on 3rd Street near Myrtle Street and where needed for the Bal Harbor subdivision. 

Made by Messinger, seconded by Key. 

MOTION:       TO APPROVE  CURED-IN-PLACE PIPE (CIPP) PROJECT – 3RD STREET 
NEAR MYRTLE STREET AND BAL HARBOR SUBDIVISION 

12



JUNE 20, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 4 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 5-Livingston, Messinger, Key, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 

MOTION CARRIED 

Belt Filter Press Water Reclamation Facility Belt Filter Press. Mr. Calhoun reported the water reclamation facility
treats approximately 600,000 gallons per day (GPD) of wastewater. Biosolids produced from
the treatment process are approximately 180,000 gallons per week which must be thickened 
in the belt filter press prior to transport by roll-off to the landfill. He is requesting partial
rehabilitation of the belt filter press originally installed in 1997. 

Made by Messinger, seconded Key. 

MOTION:      TO APPROVE THE WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY BELT  FILTER 
PRESS REHABILITATION TO LANGLEY SEPARATION AND PROCESS, 
LLC IN THE AMOUNT OF $67,445.00 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 5-Messinger, Key, Livingston, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 

MOTION CARRIED 

Emergency 
Commercial 
Dive Services 

Emergency Commercial Dive Services.  Mr. Calhoun explained one of the water reclamation 
facility tanks has experienced a failure of the aeration system pipework submerged in 
wastewater.  A hazardous waste commercial dive team will be utilized to assess the condition of 
the pipework for possible repair.  Staff is also investigating surface aerators as an alternative to 
the pipe network. 

Made by Messinger, seconded by Chin. 

MOTION:    TO APPROVE EMERGENCY COMMERCIAL DIVE SERVICES TO 
MAINSTREAM COMMERCIAL DIVERS, INC. 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 5-Key, Livingston, Messinger, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 

MOTION CARRIED 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public 
Comment 

Pat Hazouri, 207 Florida Boulevard, Neptune Beach, stated she is happy that Chief Pike is City 
Manager. She asked for greater transparency and greater involvement from the Community. She 
added that we need a Community Development Board that represents the Community. She 
spoke regarding the Community Vision Plan and commented: “It isn’t really ours, it’s yours.”   

Adjournment There being no further business, the Special Meeting adjourned at 6:38 p.m. 

13



 JUNE 20, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 5 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

  Elaine Brown, Mayor 

 ATTEST:   
  

 
 

 Catherine Ponson, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved: ________________ 

 

14



14.1



14.2



JUNE 20, 2023 WORKSHOP COUNCIL MEETING P. 1

MINUTES  
WORKSHOP CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE SPECIAL MEETING 
TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023, 6:38 P.M. 

NEPTUNE BEACH CITY HALL 
116 FIRST STREET 

NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA 32266 
Pursuant to proper notice, a Workshop City Council Meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Neptune Beach was held on Tuesday, June 20, 2023, at  6:38 p.m., in Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 116 First Street, Neptune Beach, Florida, 32266 

Attendance IN ATTENDANCE: 
Mayor Elaine Brown 
Vice Mayor Kerry Chin 
Councilor Lauren Key 
Councilor Nia Livingston 
Councilor Josh Messinger 

STAFF: 
City Attorney Zachary Roth 
City Manager Richard Pike 
CFO Jaime Hernandez 
Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun 
Deputy Public Works Director Colin Moore 
Interim Police Chief Michael Key 
Senior Center Director Leslie Lyne 
Community Development Director Heather Whitmore 
City Clerk Catherine Ponson 

Call to 
Order/Roll Call 

Mayor Brown called the workshop meeting to order at 6:38 p.m.  

AWARDS/PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITION OF GUESTS / NONE 

PROPOSED ORDINANCES 

Dogs on the 
Beach 

Proposed Ordinance, An Ordinance Amending Section 6-31, Regarding Dogs on the 
Beach to Establishing Consistency with Atlantic Beach; Clarifying Leash Requirements; 
Requiring Certain Protections for Dogs; Providing for Severability; Providing for an 
Effective Date. 

Councilor Livingston stated this had been brought up before. The main goal is to have 
consistency with  Atlantic Beach and it tightens up the restrictions, including having potable 
water and shade. 

Councilor Messinger commented that he is overall supportive of this legislation. 

Vice Mayor Chin stated he had a few concerns and would caution against moving too 
quickly on this  considering there had been a couple of recent dog attacks. He pointed out 
that people are not respecting the leash requirement so he is concerned will not be able to 
adequately patrol or enforce the beaches. Until he hears a critical threshold of residents 

15



  
 JUNE 20, 2023 WORKSHOP COUNCIL MEETING Page 2 

 

 

who want no restrictions, he would hold off on this.  

 Councilor Key commented after speaking with Police Services Officer Dee Zagari and 
understanding why this legislation would help enforce the rules better, it makes sense. If 
there were signs at every beach access and communication about the rules, this would 
help Ms. Zagari in issuing tickets and enforcement 

  
 Vice Mayor Chin agreed with increasing signage, and we could also make Atlantic Beach 

aware of what our rules are 
  
 Ms. Zagari stated this would help enforce the leash requirement if dogs were allowed at all 

times. It would also help with the enforcement of service animal restrictions. She also 
added having water, shade and prohibiting electric and remote collars as part of the 
legislation. 

 Councilor Key pointed out on Page 3 of the ordinance, “be” needs to be added to “dogs in 
tide pools must on-leash.” 

 CONSENSUS:      MOVE FORWARD FOR FIRST READ  
  
 ISSUE DEVELOPMENT 
  
FDOT A1A 
Complete Streets 

FDOT A1A Complete Streets. Deputy Public Works Director Colin Moore presented the 
preliminary Complete Streets concept from FDOT for Third Street from Atlantic Blvd to 
Seagate Ave. This project would coincide with a yet to be determined SR A1A resurfacing 
project (most likely FY 27 at the earliest). We are also coordinating stormwater 
improvements as part of this project 

  
 FDOT has requested feedback on this plan and noted that median closures can be added 

to the extent that they are justified for safety or operational needs or if they are requested 
by the users. FDOT also said we  could request addition Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons 
(Lemon Street was mentioned as one potential location) 

  
 Councilor Messinger pointed out that in the Community Visioning Plan process, concepts 

were introduced that include multi-purpose paths on both sides, more landscaping in the 
medians and sides of the street so it is more of a slower entrance into a community and 
residential area. He would like these sent to FDOT to show how we have those ideas in 
place. 

 PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
 Pat Hazouri, 207 Florida Blvd, Neptune Beach, spoke regarding dangerous intersections. 

She requested having input on the above-mentioned FDOT A1A project. 
  
 COUNCIL COMMENTS 
  
 

 

Councilor Key announced that on June 21, 2023, the installation of beach volleyball court
Seagate and Hopkins.  The Fletcher High Girls Beach Volleyball team is paying for and sp
The practice times will be noticed on the net. Outside of those times, the City will be putt
individuals to play. This will provide public amenity on the beach. She has been working 
Turtle Patrol in this partnership. 

  
 Vice Mayor Chin announced that the Sea Turtle Patrol will be holding their annual party and

raffle at Slider’s on June 27, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. He encouraged everyone to attend and 
support the organization. 

  

16



  
 JUNE 20, 2023 WORKSHOP COUNCIL MEETING Page 3 

 

 

Adjournment The workshop meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
  

 
 
_________________ 

                                                                          Elaine Brown, Mayor 
  

 
 

 

 ATTEST: 
 

 

 ______________________________ 
 Catherine Ponson, CMC 

City Clerk 
 

 
Approved: _______________  

 

17



 JUNE 28, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL  MEETING PAGE 1 
 

 

 
 

 
  MINUTES 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 28, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 

NEPTUNE BEACH CITY HALL 
116 FIRST STREET 

NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA 32266 
 Pursuant to proper notice, a Special City Council Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Neptune Beach was held on Wednesday, June 28, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., at Neptune Beach City 
Hall, 116 First Street, Neptune Beach, Florida 32266. 

   
Attendance: IN ATTENDANCE: STAFF: 
 Mayor Elaine Brown  

Vice Mayor Kerry Chin 
Councilor Lauren Key  
Councilor Nia Livingston 
Councilor Josh Messinger (absent) 
 
 
 
 

City Attorney Zachary Roth 
City Manager Richard Pike 
Parks and Sustainability Director Colin Moore 
Interim Police Chief Michael Key 
City Clerk Catherine Ponson 
 

Call to 
Order/Roll 
Call/Pledge 

Mayor Brown called the Special Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

  
Waste Pro 
Contract 

City Attorney Zachary Roth explained that he had several meetings with Waste Pro 
representatives and also exchanged emails. They have created an amendment to the existing 
contract to propose to Council for consideration. 

  
City Attorney 
Review 

Mr. Roth reviewed the changes, which include extending the contract until November 30, 2023. 
Waste Pro has agreed to forgive the approximately $170,000 amount based on the fuel recovery 
and franchise fee, Waste Pro will pressure wash and deodorize the trash compactor in the 
Beaches Town Center, a new Exhibit C, which includes the new rate and clarification of the 
process to follow for an extension in the future. He added that if routes changed, they would be 
included in the utility bill.  He advised if there is an increase in tipping fee, the City would bear 
that cost. 

  
 Mr. Roth advised that a compromise was reached that any annual rate increase would be capped 

at 6%. If the CPI (Consumer Price Index) rate is increased at more than 6%, Waste Pro can bank 
any additional to future years when the rate is not 6%. He added that there is an addition of the 
right by the contractor to petition the City if there are extraordinary or unusual changes that result 
in increased costs. It would be at the Council’s discretion to grant the request. He also stated 
there was one sentence he added regarding the auditing being changed to every 12 months. 

  
 Mr. Roth reported that the donations Waste Pro makes every year would be more general to 

public events that the City sponsors and not specific events. 
  

18



 JUNE 28, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 2 
 

 Mr. Roth stated Council needs to decide about two issues,  the fuel recovery fee and the 
franchise fee. The franchise fee is rebated back to the City, and the fuel recovery fee is a charge 
added based on the cost of fuel. 

  
 Steve Diebenow,  on behalf of Waste Pro, confirmed stated the rate without the franchise fee 

would be $29.34. If the franchise fee is added back, it would add $2.93 for a rate of $32.27. He 
also confirmed the waiving of the fuel recovery fee. He also agreed with the CPI language and 
that Waste Pro would be able come to Council if there extraordinary or unusual circumstances. 

  
Council 
Discussion 

Vice Mayor Chin asked how a tipping fee increase would be passed on. 

 Mr. Roth stated that the fee Waste Pro charges the City does not automatically dictate what the 
City charges to residents.  

  
 Councilor Key commented that Waste Pro does a great job and she is comfortable moving 

forward. She would like to see the franchise fee included as it is important for budgetary 
purposes. 

  
 Councilor Livingston expressed she is comfortable with the rate presented. She is of the opinion 

that we should move forward with the franchise fee deleted. We have not had the money in the 
General Fund as the contract was not being enforced. 

  
 Mr. Roth responded that when the City previously requested the franchise fee, up to that point it 

was not contemplated in the budget. The CFO has reported that it should be included in the 
budget. 

  
 Councilor Livingston stated that the City should be creative to find fund other than from the 

residents. 
  
 Mayor Brown commented that the City has been operating at a deficit with the service and we 

have to at least break even. In talking with the CFO, the $120,000 annually that could be received 
from the franchise fee is needed in the budget. 

  
 Councilor Key agreed with Mayor Brown. After also talking with the CFO, the franchise fee is 

needed for the budget and this is a small way to add to what is needed for infrastructure work 
and things that need to be done. If it is in the best interest of the City as a whole, she is 
comfortable moving forward with it. 

  
 Mr. Roth informed Council he had comments from Councilor Messinger, who was unable to 

attend. Councilor Messinger is okay with the contract with the franchise fee and without the fuel 
recovery fee. He would like to go to an RFP, but he believes this contract is reasonable if Council 
wants to move forward. 

  
 Vice Mayor Chin expressed that he does not want to add another fee to residents. The City is 

facing a lot of needs that are piling up. At this point, he would agree that we should include the 
franchise fee as much as he dislikes that option.  

  
 Mr. Roth advised that what was included in the packet was a draft. He would clarify that the 

motion be to approve the amendment that was sent earlier that day and to include the franchise 
fee and the rate be adjusted. 

  
 Councilor Livingston commented that she has a hard time passing the fee on to residents.   
  
 Mayor Brown thanked the City Attorney for his efforts throughout this negotiation process as well 

as Waste Pro. 
  
 Councilor Key agreed with Councilor Livingston that it is a hard decision. This is one of those 

times where a hard decision is in the best interest of the City. 

19



 JUNE 28, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 3 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 Made by Key, seconded by Chin. 
  
 MOTION:                    TO APPROVE THE AMENDMENT TO THE WASTE PRO CONTRACT 

THAT WAS RECEIVED THIS DAY TO INCLUDE THE FRANCHISE 
FEE AND THE RATE BE ADJUSTED TO THE RATE AS STATED BY 
THE WASTE PRO ATTORNEY 

  
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes: 4-Key, Livingston, Chin, and Brown 

Noes: 0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
  
Adjournment There being no further business, the Special Meeting adjourned at 6:26 p.m. 
   
  

 
 

   
 
 
 
 

  Elaine Brown, Mayor 

 ATTEST:   
  

 
 
 

 

 Catherine Ponson, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved: ________________ 

 

20



 JULY 17, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL  MEETING PAGE 1 
 

 

 
 

 
  MINUTES 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 17, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 

NEPTUNE BEACH CITY HALL 
116 FIRST STREET 

NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA 32266 
 Pursuant to proper notice, a Special City Council Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Neptune Beach was held on Monday, July 17, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., at Neptune Beach City Hall, 
116 First Street, Neptune Beach, Florida 32266. 

   
Attendance: IN ATTENDANCE: STAFF: 
 Mayor Elaine Brown  

Vice Mayor Kerry Chin 
Councilor Lauren Key  
Councilor Nia Livingston 
Councilor Josh Messinger (via CMT)  
 
 
 
 

City Attorney Zachary Roth 
City Manager Richard Pike 
Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun 
CFO Jaime Hernandez 
Parks and Sustainability Director Colin Moore 
Interim Police Chief Michael Key 
Senior Center Director Leslie Lyne 
Community Development Director Heather Whitmore 
City Clerk Catherine Ponson 
 

Call to 
Order/Roll 
Call/Pledge 

Mayor Brown called the Special Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and Councilor led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

  
Neptune 
Trident Award 

Neptune Trident Award. Mayor Brown presented the Neptune Trident Award to Ms. Patsy 
Bishop. Ms. Bishop is the second recipient of this award. She was nominated by the Mr. Richard 
Keene who received the inaugural award in 2021. The Neptune Trident Award was established 
to recognize outstanding residents for their service to the community. The award is symbolic of 
King Neptune’s Trident and each tine represents a tenet on which the award was founded, 
selflessness, integrity and leadership. 

  
CDB Appts CDB Appointments. Mayor Brown announced this item is deferred. 
  
Well #1 
Replacement 
and Pump 

Well #1 Replacement and Pump. Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun reminded everyone 
there was a failure of the pump serving Well #1. Council had approved on June 5, 2023, the 
emergency award to pull the pump and motor. While the pump was out of the well, it was video 
logged and  was determined to be in poor condition. The replacement of this pump will bring Well 
#1 back online. 

  
 Made by Key, seconded by Messinger. 
  
 MOTION:         TO APPROVE REPLACEMENT AND INSTALLATION OF WELL #1 PUMP IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $54,856.00 TO COMPLETE SERVICES WELL DRILLING, 
INC. 

  
  
  

21



 JULY 17, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes: 5-Key, Livingston, Messinger, Chin, and Brown 

Noes: 0 
  
 MOTION CARRIED 
  
 PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
Public 
Comment 

Shellie Thole, 124 Margaret Street, Neptune Beach, thanked Public Works for their recent help 
over the weekend with a drainage issue on her street.   

  
Adjournment There being no further business, the Special Meeting adjourned at 6:09 p.m. 
   
  

 
 

   
 
 
 
 

  Elaine Brown, Mayor 

 ATTEST:   
  

 
 

 Catherine Ponson, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved: ________________ 

 

22



 JULY 17, 2023 WORKSHOP COUNCIL MEETING P. 1 
 

 

 
 

        
 
 

MINUTES  
WORKSHOP CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE SPECIAL MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 17, 2023, 6:09 P.M. 

NEPTUNE BEACH CITY HALL 
116 FIRST STREET 

NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA 32266 
 
 

Pursuant to proper notice, a Workshop City Council Meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Neptune Beach was held on Monday, July 17, 2023, at  6:09 p.m., in Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 116 First Street, Neptune Beach, Florida, 32266 

Attendance 
 
 
 
 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: 
Mayor Elaine Brown 
Vice Mayor Kerry Chin 
Councilor Lauren Key 
Councilor Nia Livingston 
Councilor Josh Messinger (via 
CMT) 
 
 
 
 

STAFF: 
City Attorney Zachary Roth 
City Manager Richard Pike 
CFO Jaime Hernandez 
Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun 
Parks and Sustainability Director Colin Moore 
Interim Police Chief Michael Key 
Community Development Director Heather Whitmore 
City Clerk Catherine Ponson 
 

Call to 
Order/Roll Call 

Mayor Brown called the workshop meeting to order at 6:09 p.m.  

 AWARDS/PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITION OF GUESTS / NONE 
  
 DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
  
City Manager 
Report 

City Manager Richard Pike reported that he and CFO Jaime Hernandez have been 
working on  the FY 24 budget and will begin meeting with department heads. He 
announced Thursday, July 20, 2023, would be the Annual Hurricane Preparedness 
Meeting. Representatives from City of Jacksonville, Baldwin and the Beaches would be 
attending the annual tabletop exercise. 

  
Interim 
Police Chief 
Report 

Interim Police Chief Michael Key reported on the following: 
 The e-bike enforcement campaign has kicked off. This includes handing out 

warnings and brochures to educate citizens of the laws that regulate the use of e-
bikes. There is also partnership with Fletcher High School, Neptune Beach 
Elementary, and Beaches Chapel, to have Neptune Beach Police Officers in those 
schools to educate, provide lecture and hold question and answer sessions with 
those students. 

 The 4th of July holiday was successful with no major incidents to report. 
 
 

23



  
 JUNE 20, 2023 WORKSHOP COUNCIL MEETING Page 2 

 

 

 Since July 1st, 2023, Ocean Rescue has had three lost people, 14 first aid cases, 
11 preventative water actions, and seven rip current related issues. He added that 
Ocean Rescue is reporting that heat is the major concern. 

 The Narcan rollout has taken place. This medicine saves lives during an overdose. 
 He presented the June crime statistics report. 

  
Senior Center 
Update 

Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun reported the Senior Center project is on schedule. 
The deck is up. The foundation was first and has been signed off on. Notice to Proceed 
was issued in mid-May with substantial completion in 90 days and full completion in 20 
days. 

  
 Mr. Calhoun advised that the Bal Harbour stormwater system work would begin the last 

week of August. A flyer would be distributed to homes along the route. 
  
Parks and 
Sustainability 
Report 

Parks and Sustainability Director Colin Moore announced the next Public Meeting for the 
Penman Road project would be Wednesday, August 16th, 2023, from 5:30 to 7:00 p.m. at 
Jacksonville Beach City Hall, 11 3rd Street N., Jacksonville, Florida 32250. 

  
 The jaguar in the Beaches Town Center would be removed to be repainted on Wednesday, 

July 19, 2023. The project should take about 60 days. 
  
 The pressure washing in Beaches Town Center would take place the following week after 

hours. The merchants have been notified. 
  
 COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  
TIP Committee Mayor Brown reported there would be a meeting of the Transportation and Infrastructure 

Planning Committee in August. 
  
 PROPOSED ORDINANCES 
  
Spending 
Threshold 

Proposed Ordinance, An Ordinance of the City of Neptune Beach, Florida, Amending 
Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-377, Competitive Bidding; Written Contracts, Providing for 
Severability; and Providing an Effective Date. 

  
 Mr. Calhoun stated that he has been coming to Council for project approval numerous 

times. He said that the threshold amount of $10,000 should be adjusted to account for 
inflation. 

  
 City Attorney Zachary Roth pointed out that the amount had previously been $25,000 and 

moved down to $9,999.00.  
  
 Vice Mayor Chin expressed that he supports this in order to get things done quicker. He 

does request that Council be apprised of when a big purchase is made and for what 
purpose if questions arise. 

  
 Mr. Pike confirmed Councilor Key’s inquiry that he would be given the authority to make 

the decision rather than coming to Council. 
  
 Mr. Roth pointed out that there may be items that have already been budgeted for and laid 

out, but the actual estimate has not been procured. The department head could move 
forward with getting the contract. 

  
 Councilor Messinger commented that this is straightforward. This is what was historically 

done. Based on all of the improvements at Public Works and other places, the City 
Manager will do well with this change in authority. 

24



  
 JUNE 20, 2023 WORKSHOP COUNCIL MEETING Page 3 

 

 

  
 CONSENSUS:      MOVE FORWARD FOR FIRST READ  
  
Adjournment The workshop meeting adjourned at 6:24 p.m. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
_________________ 

                                                                          Elaine Brown, Mayor 
  

 
 

 

 ATTEST: 
 

 

 ______________________________ 
 Catherine Ponson, CMC 

City Clerk 
 

 
Approved: _______________  

 

25



JULY 19, 2023 EMERGENCY COUNCIL  MEETING PAGE 1 

MINUTES 
EMERGENCY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JULY 19, 2023, 3:30 P.M. 

NEPTUNE BEACH CITY HALL 
116 FIRST STREET 

NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA 32266 
Pursuant to proper notice, an Emergency City Council Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Neptune Beach was held on Wednesday, July 19, 2023, at 3:30 p.m., at Neptune Beach City 
Hall, 116 First Street, Neptune Beach, Florida 32266. 

Attendance: IN ATTENDANCE: STAFF: 
Mayor Elaine Brown  
Vice Mayor Kerry Chin 
Councilor Lauren Key  
Councilor Nia Livingston (absent) 
Councilor Josh Messinger (absent) 

City Attorney Zachary Roth (via CMT) 
City Manager Richard Pike 
Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun 
CFO Jaime Hernandez 
Parks and Sustainability Director Colin Moore 
Interim Police Chief Michael Key 
City Clerk Catherine Ponson 

Call to 
Order/Roll 
Call/Pledge 

Disk Filter 
Repair 

Mayor Brown called the Emergency Meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 

Disk Filter Emergency Repair.  City Manager Richard Pike reported he had been advised by 
the Public Works Director of an existing machinery issue. Mr. Pike considers this a public 
safety emergency and requested this meeting for the Director to move forward with the 
purchase of the equipment required to avoid this emergency. 

Public Works Director Deryle Calhoun expressed that since the equipment has been down, 
the City has been exceeding the normal operational levels for the bacteriological tests. If the 
City keeps on this trend, the annual permitted limit is at risk. He would like to get the order in 
due to the lead time needed. The equipment is a disk filter that is involved with the filtration of 
treated water prior to disinfection by chlorine.

Made by Chin, seconded by Key.

MOTION:    TO APPROVE THE EMERGENCY REPAIR OF THE DISK FILTER IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $55,675.00 

Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes: 3-Key, Chin, and Brown 
Noes: 0 

MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment There being no further business, the Emergency Meeting adjourned at 3:36 p.m. 

26



JULY 19, 2023 EMERGENCY COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 2 

Elaine Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST:  

Catherine Ponson, CMC 
City Clerk 

Approved: ________________ 

27



JULY 26, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL  MEETING PAGE 1 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 26, 2023, 5:30 P.M. 
NEPTUNE BEACH CITY HALL 

116 FIRST STREET 
NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA 32266 

Pursuant to proper notice, a Special City Council Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Neptune Beach was held on Wednesday, July 26, 2023, at 5:30 p.m., at Neptune Beach City 
Hall, 116 First Street, Neptune Beach, Florida 32266. 

Attendance: IN ATTENDANCE: STAFF: 
Mayor Elaine Brown  
Vice Mayor Kerry Chin 
Councilor Lauren Key  
Councilor Nia Livingston (absent) 
Councilor Josh Messinger  

City Attorney Zachary Roth  
City Manager Richard Pike 
CFO Jaime Hernandez 
Parks and Sustainability Director Colin Moore 
City Clerk Catherine Ponson 

Call to 
Order/Roll 
Call/Pledge 

Mayor Brown called the Special Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

Tentative 
Proposed 
Millage Rate 

Tentative Proposed Millage Rate. Mayor Brown explained that this is for the millage rate to be 
presented to Council. 

Chief Financial Officer Jaime Hernandez stated that he asked this meeting as it is required by 
the State for Mayor and Council to be advised of the proposed millage rate for the ensuing year. 
He reported that he is proposing an increase from 0.3656 to 4.038. This is a .67 cent increase 
per thousand dollars. This will be certified to the Property Appraiser. 

Mr. Hernandez presented information showing the breakdown of the percentages and amounts. 
He confirmed that this is only for the certification and is not setting the millage rate. 

Mr. Hernandez answered Vice Mayor Chin’s inquiry that that this meeting was called as Council 
must be advised of the proposed millage rate prior to submitting the certification to the property 
appraiser by August 4, 2023.  

Mr. Roth confirmed Vice Mayor Chin’s question that the threshold of a millage rate increase that 
requires a super-majority vote by Council is one-half (0.5) mil. 

Councilor Messinger expressed he is a firm believer that we should be actively seeking a CRA 
and actively looking to work with COJ to keep more tax dollars. There are more conversations 
to be had before we would have a 20% increase. He would like to exhaust all options. We do 
need long-term revenue streams, and a big part of that is keeping that tax dollars here. 

28



JULY 26, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING PAGE 2 

Mr. Hernandez advised he would submit the certification to the property appraiser and continue 
the budget process. 

MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment There being no further business, the Special Meeting adjourned at 5:41 p.m. 

Elaine Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST:  

Catherine Ponson, CMC 
City Clerk 

Approved: ________________ 

29



1 

City Manager Report  

Council Meeting August 7th, 2023.  

Departmental Recaps-08/01/2023 

Police Department 

 Internal PD Budget meeting this Thursday
 Air Show Meeting this Thursday
 DEA Gun Range Donation Received for $50,000.
 2023 Jag Grant Award Received for $52,000.

Paid Parking 

 First draft of Paid Parking SOP completed
 Re-wrote Parking Ambassadors job description and posted vacancy w/ Jillian.
 New signage for City Hall parking (east and south side)
 Met with BTC President Kendra Robertson regarding BTC parking for business

employees
 August 7th meeting with all Parking Ambassadors
 Purchasing new supplies for Parking Office and tools for Parking Ambassadors
 Working on a laptop for the parking office for City email - Isolved - Internet access
 Process of getting Business Cards made (see attached)
 Re-evaluating payment and fine structures

Animal Control 

 New signs, located at Public Works, have been placed throughout Jarboe Park for picking
up pet waste and keeping dogs leashed

 New ordinance 1st read at next council meeting

Community Development 

 Updates to go to Council on August 7th
o LDC Update: Recreational Vehicles/Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts

 Will require revisions to Home-based Businesses
o Pete’s Development Order

 CDB September 13th

o 412 South St Side Setback Variance
o 2101Bartolome Lot Split

 Seahorse redevelopment
o Traffic Concurrency
o Land Use verification
o Height verification
o Stormwater verification
o Utility verification

14.1



2 

IT Department 

 In the process of replacing the Cisco Meraki MX65W. As for backup internet providers,
we have received quotes from AT&T and Xfinity Fiber. The former offers 10Mbps
Switched Ethernet (symmetrical fiber) at a monthly cost of $382.77, while the latter
proposes 200Mbps EDI (symmetrical fiber) at a rate of $509.00 per month.

 In the realm of access control and CCTV, we are awaiting the vendor application from
Bates Security for both services.

 As for our current orders, they include two mini desktops and ten UPC backups for the
Wastewater department, as well as one vlog and social media camera, two desktop
workstations for Ryan and Ricardo, and one laptop for Ricardo, all for City Hall.

 Lastly, regarding follow-ups, we are working on obtaining admin access to the T-Mobile
and Verizon portals. We also plan to upgrade the Veeam Backup to version 12 and add
Wasabi Storage as an offsite backup.

Public Works 

Operations 
1. Wastewater Reclamation Facility

a. Plant 1 – Hazen and Sawyer are wrapping up the Phase 1 study, which has
identified construction needs.  Currently drafting Phase 2 proposal for
presentation to Council.

b. Plant 2 – Dewberry is still on for the August bid, with an addendum for clarifier
and structural improvements to follow.  Will request approval from Council on
8/07 to bid.

c. FDEP inspection 7/31; staff from Tallahassee in attendance.

2. Water Plant and Wells
a. Replacement Well 5 kick-off meeting held with Kimley-Horn 7/27; current

schedule would have Well 5 on-line FY24 Q4.
b. Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) work continues by Kimley-Horn.

3. Stormwater
a. Meeting with Mayor Deegan held 7/28 regarding Hopkins Creek at Florida and

Forest improvements.
b. Jones-Edmunds submitted a constructability review to FDOT for 3rd Street

improvements.

Projects 
1. Water Tower Project

a. Held call with the contractor regarding logistics for upcoming blasting operation.
b. CONB contractor programming high service pumps to handle system demands

once the tank is drained and out of service; will run the program for a few weeks

14.2



3 

before blasting operations (mobilization on barrier and bonnet that covers the tank 
to begin 9/03). 

c. Logo confirmed at no additional cost.
d. New Verizon lease agreement and request for rent abatement; emailed Verizon

rep 7/30 for additional information to support the request.

2. City Hall Roof Replacement
a. Will request approval from Council on 8/07 to award the project to NexGen in the

amount of $70,144.60 without solar panel reinstallation ($90,144.60 with panels)
b. Ardurra Engineers requested of A1A Solar the cost to install at DPW when roofs

are replaced in FY24.

3. Senior Center
a. Roof leak – Jacksonville Roofing to remove and replace sealant on roof joints at a

cost of $3,475.00.
b. Building inspection is scheduled, as both architect and engineer have signed off

on work completed.
c. Architect reviewing bid documents with respect to painting the entire deck

structure; not clear at this time if it was explicitly defined.
d. Landscaping to begin 8/02 with a pre-con meeting; there will be some credit due

to CONB for a reduction in landscape materials due to rock rubble under the oak
tree.

e. Fire sprinkler system – Platinum Fire Protection has its approved permit and will
begin on 8/02.

4. Senior Center building painting – First quote of roughly $8k has been received.

5. Bal Harbor Televising of Stormwater Pipes - Scheduled to begin 8/07; flyers distributed
to affected residents.

6. SB64 Zero Discharge - Florida Rural Board approved moving forward with legislative
push-back efforts.  Email to members requesting compliance cost estimates.  Deryle is
attending the FRWA conference from 7/31 - 8/02.

7. 500 Atlantic water and sewer service – Call scheduled 7/31

8. Seahorse ability to serve letter – Terrell Arline provided a mark-up for consideration;
Deryle passed it along to CM Pike, Heather, and Zach for review on 7/31.

Senior Activity Center 

 CDBG Contract 2023-2024- Requesting $48,000 (estimated approval August)
 Event Stats YTD-1,016 total events offered
 Services Delivered YTD- 496 unduplicated individuals
 Construction on Forest Ave.- Anticipated move in November 2023
 Status Report to Eckstein Charitable Trust- All monies are to be used no later than

October 31, 2023

14.3



4 

 Medicare Made Simple Presentation on August 14 @ 10 am
 Day Trips -August & December (King Tut & Sarah Brightman)
 Vintage Players Presentation on August 16
 Fundraisers through travel & grants- YTD $6,877
 Travel Opportunities- Domestic & World
 Suggested Senior Activity Board-Recommendations under review by City Manager

Parks & Sustainability 

 Penman Road Public Meeting at Jax Beach City Hall, Aug 16 at 5:30 pm
 FDOT “Road Work Ahead” signs are still up for the Third St project because a few of the

signal items are on back order and haven’t been installed
 Locations for replacement path lighting in Jarboe Park have been identified (Beaches

Energy has committed to replacing 13 lights that were removed during park construction)
 Pickleball lights are now working – the electrical contractor made the repairs under

warranty

Human Resources 

 New Employee Onboarding
o Ricardo Pizzaro-will be joining us as the Chief Information Officer on 8/21/2023.
o Roya Nateghi-will be joining us as a Wastewater Operator on 9/5/2023.

 Preparing insurance renewal data
 Preparing for the implementation of the new payroll system, Paycor.
 Revising Job Descriptions into a standardized format
 Drafting a Veteran’s preference policy for review
 Recruiting for Four New Positions

o Police Officer (full-time and part-time)
o Beaches Ambassador
o School Crossing Guard
o Lead Wastewater Operator

City Clerk 

 August 7 Regular meeting agenda prep questions
 August 9 Finance Committee meeting agenda
 Surplus vehicle sale update

Finance 

 The FY 21-22 Audit is scheduled to start on September 4 and is expected to end on
December 8, 2023. Having an audit meeting to discuss the audit schedule.

14.4



5 

 Wrapping up the budget meetings with department heads:
o Compile new or additional data,
o Update spreadsheet and forward to department heads

 Final review
 Acceptance

o Build initial FY 22-23 budget draft.
 FEMA projects for Nichole and Ian have been closed (debris pick up). The funds will be

sent to the state by FEMA, then the state will send us the funds for the reimbursement,
around $57,000.

 Initial DR-420 certification submitted to the Property Appraisal
o Recommended an increase of $.6731 Per $1,000 of assessed value or 20 percent.

 About $302.90 for a property with an assessed value of $500,000.
o The property tax increase will represent an additional $800,000. Mostly, the

revenue will be used for IT projects:
 Update IT infrastructure,
 Establish and maintain security requirements,
 Convert city records from hard copy to soft copy / digital.

14.5



CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: Agenda Item 7A - DP23-01, Application for Final Development Order,
Pete's Bar

SUBMITTED BY: Heather Whitmore, AICP, Community Development Director 

DATE: August 7, 2023 

BACKGROUND: DP23-01 Application for Final Development Order approval as outlined in 

Chapter 27 Article II Division 2 of the Unified Land Development Code of 

Neptune Beach for Pierre’s LLC for the properties known as Pete’s Bar at 117 

First Street, 120 & 110 Lemon Street (RE# 172782-0000, 172783-0000 & 

172784-0000) 

This item was brought before the Community Development Board on July 12, 

2023 and was unanimously approved. The Final Development Order requires 

review and approval by City Council. 

Pete’s is requesting a final development order approval. The existing building 

has previously been used for a bar and it has a current building permit for 

interior renovations only. The applicant must obtain an exterior remodeling 

building permit and Development Order for the outdoor improvements.  

The applicant requested a Historically Significant parking exemption from the 

Community Development Board as permitted in Sec. 27-540 (b) of the Land 

Development Code to provide the additional required parking spaces. The 

new total number of seats including the deck requires a total of 49 parking 

spaces. The sites 30 spaces is 19 spaces short of the required 49 spaces. The 

Community Development Board may exempt, in whole or in part, any 

Historically Significant property from providing required parking. 

On July 12, 2023, the Community Development Board unanimously approved 

the Preliminary Development Plan and unanimously approved the requested 

History Significant parking exemption for the 19 parking space balance of the 

required spaces. The Community Development Board recommended Final 

Development Order review and approval to the City Council.  

The Final Development Plan shall be consistent with the Preliminary 

Development Plan and shall contain no land uses different than those approved 

in the Preliminary Development Plan. 

Agenda Item #7A

Final Development Order, 

Pete's Bar

30



The Final Development Plan as presented here is consistent the Preliminary 

Development Plan and does not contain land uses different than those 

approved in the Preliminary Development Plan. 

BUDGET: NA 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the application for the Final Development Order 

as presented for the properties known as Pete’s Bar at 117 First Street, 120 & 

110 Lemon Street (RE# 172782-0000, 172783-0000 & 172784-0000). 

ATTACHMENT: Exhibits: 

July 12, 2023 Community Development Board Staff Report for DP23-01: 

Development Plan for Pierre’s LLC for the properties known as Pete’s Bar 

at 117 First Street, 120 & 110 Lemon Street (RE# 172782-0000, 

172783-0000 & 172784-0000) including application and Development 

Plan 

July 12, CDB Minuutes

31



CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH – COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

MEETING DATE:   July 12, 2023 

BOARD/COMMITTEE: Community Development Board 

APPLICATION NUMBER: DP23-01 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

TO:  Community Development Board 

FROM: Heather Whitmore, AICP, Community Development Director 

DATE: July 3, 2023 

SUBJECT: DP23-01 Application for Preliminary Development Plan as outlined in Chapter 27 

Article II Division 2 of the Unified Land Development Code of Neptune Beach for Pierre’s LLC 

for the properties known as Pete’s Bar at 117 First Street, 120 & 110 Lemon Street (RE# 

172782-0000, 172783-0000 & 172784-0000) 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

I. BACKGROUND: A preliminary development application has been submitted for the 

properties known as Pete’s Bar at 117 First Street, 120 & 110 Lemon Street (RE# 

172782-0000, 172783-0000 & 172784-0000). The existing building has previously 

been used for a bar and it has a current building permit for interior renovations. The 

applicant must obtain an exterior remodeling building permit and Development Order 

for the outdoor improvements. The property has a Comprehensive Plan Town Center 

Land Use designation and is zoned Central Business District. Restaurants and Bars 

with outdoor seating are permitted in this district.   

 

The building was built in 1931 and Pete’s Bar was established in 1933. The existing 

building is 3,956 square feet with 76 of seats. The deck is approximately 1,700 square 

feet with 117 seats. The new total number of seats including the deck will be 193. The 

deck area was previously asphalted and dirt/gravel and used for storage, outdoor 

seating and smoking. 

 

The request is to build a ground level wood slatted deck structure with outdoor 

seating, smoking area, open-air serving counters, an employee service area, and 

storage area. This will be behind the existing building at 117 First St running east 

behind the buildings at 120 & 110 Lemon St.  
 

32



The deck is a controlled area attached to the existing building with an access gate. 

The two enclosed counter serving areas will be attached to existing commercial 

structures bordering the deck. The small storage and employee area will be attached 

and behind the existing restaurant. The storage addition is off of the kitchen and will 

not be used for seating.   

 

The site currently has 30 parking spaces and two handicap spaces. The handicap 

spaces are ADA compliant. 27-540 Parking Requirements requires 1 parking space 

per 4 seats for restaurants and bars. Section 27-540 (1) permits a 50% parking 

reduction for uses located in CBD. The new total number of seats including the deck 

will be 193 and therefore the site requires a total of 49 parking spaces. The site 

requires 1 bicycle space, and 3 are provided. Section The sites 30 spaces is 19 space 

short of the required 49 spaces. 

 

The applicant has requested a Historically Significant parking exemption from the 

Community Development Board as permitted in Sec. 27-540 (b) of the Land 

Development Code to provide an additional required 19 parking spaces. The 

Community Development Board may exempt, in whole or in part, any Historically 

Significant property from providing required parking.  

 

“Historically significant is defined as “any structure or area that is included or is 

eligible for inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places, the Florida Master 

Site File, or local historic registry.” The applicant is the process of obtaining a 

Historic Designation on the Florida Master File List of the Florida Bureau of Historic 

Preservation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1:Pete’s Bar, 117 First Street, 120 & 110 Lemon Street, Neptune Beach, FL 

33



 

II. FINDINGS: 

 

Sec. 27-82. - Procedures for applying for and issuing preliminary and final development 

orders states the community development board shall conduct a quasijudicial public 

hearing and shall consider the following factors when issuing a development order:  

 

(1) Characteristics of the site and surrounding area, including important natural 

and manmade features, the size and accessibility of the site, and surrounding land 

uses.  

Staff Response: The site is an existing established use and is not a new use. The 

property is located in the Central Business District. The deck area was previously 

asphalted and dirt/gravel and used for storage, outdoor seating and smoking. The deck is 

a controlled area with a gate. The site accessibility will remain the same.  

 

(2) Whether the concurrency requirements of article VI of this Code could be met if 

the development were built.  

Staff Response:  

Concurrency: 

Traffic:  The proposed redevelopment will not generation any additional traffic because 

the area was storage, smoking and seating. 

Water/Sewer:  This project area has water and sewer. 

School:  Not applicable 

Drainage:  No new additional hard surfaces area will be added. The wood slatted deck is 

pervious to rain.  

 

(3) The nature of the proposed development, including land use types and densities; 

the placement of proposed buildings and other improvements on the site; the 

location, type and method of maintenance of open space and public use areas; the 

preservation of natural features; proposed parking areas; internal traffic 

circulation system, including trails; the approximate total ground coverage of paved 

areas and structures; and types of water and sewage treatment systems.  

Staff Response: The site is an existing established use and is not a new use. The property 

is located in the Central Business District. The use complies with density and lot 

coverage. The deck area was previously asphalted and dirt/gravel and used for storage, 

outdoor seating and smoking. The deck is a controlled area with a gate. The site 

accessibility will remain the same. The applicant has requested a Historically 

Significance required parking reduction.  

 

(4) Conformity of the proposed development with the comprehensive plan, this  

34



Code, and other applicable regulations.  

 

Staff Response: The property has a Comprehensive Plan Town Center Land Use 

designation and is zoned Central Business District. Restaurants and Bars with outdoor 

seating are permitted in this district.   

 

(5) Applicable regulations, review procedures, and submission requirements.  

Staff Response: The existing building has previously been used for a bar and it has a 

current building permit for interior renovations. The applicant must obtain an exterior 

remodeling permit and Development Order for the outdoor improvements. The 

property has a Comprehensive Plan Town Center Land Use designation and is zoned 

Central Business District. Restaurants and Bars with outdoor seating are permitted in 

this district.  

 

The applicant is requesting a Historically Significant parking exemption from the 

Community Development Board as permitted in Sec. 27-540 (b) of the Land 

Development Code to provide required additional parking. The Community 

Development Board may exempt, in whole or in part, any Historically Significant 

property from providing required parking. 

 

(6) Concerns and desires of surrounding landowners and other persons.  

Staff Response: The Development Order request was noticed as required to property 

owners within 300 feet. A sign was posted on the property according to requirements. 

Staff has not received any comments from the public.  

 

(7) Other applicable factors and criteria prescribed by the comprehensive plan, this 

Code, or other law.  

Staff Response: None. The applicant must obtain an exterior remodeling permit and 

Development Order for the outdoor improvements. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation   

 

Staff recommends approval of the application for Preliminary Development for the properties 

known as Pete’s Bar at 117 First Street, 120 & 110 Lemon Street (RE# 172782-0000, 172783-

0000 & 172784-0000). Staff recommends approval the requested History Significant parking 

exemption for the 19 parking space balance of the required spaces. 

 

The developer shall submit a Final Development Plan, as defined in this Code, for review by the 

City Council. The Final Development Plan shall be consistent with the Preliminary Development 

35



Order and shall contain no land uses different than those approved in the Preliminary 

Development Order. 

36



37



38



39



l
CC!OfflW ' 

Oll,l'OST:? tm> -- 5k1MT__.9 
I _ __ - - - ·- - - -- -- -r - - -- ·-- -- _J 

:r"'"'�-_j (;"\ ENLARGED BAR PLAN 
0 SCALE: 3/8" • 1'·0" 

'"""' 
�IIOQll--.., 

1� -F·=='-"--'---,
J --, 

-, I 
Io,:;) 
I' 

''SNOW I' 
Wld.L◄2'HIGII 11 , , , , 

"' 1-1- -· r--; 

"'1STIHG,.tw.1HG 

j 

II /gj IQ /WI al 

/ 
l 

LEMON STREET 

·---mrnssueo·ro1t·Pw1rr OR CONSTJWCTlON 

Cl) o· 
[u z 
f:--· :::> 
WO 
a. a.

2
0
() 

■ 
OHIONICOO'!KATI'Vll1.C 
tD,tKt�,_'4HUI 
J�f\.Jmr 
Ult\lMIU0-14:Q. 

=.'.C!!!;un 
,u.v.aGtlM 

'"""' 
H.ltflN TOMnY 

'°"'TION ,., 
�:LINQINUllJNO 

ITtll:UCTIJIW.�UII.IHG '" 
M.a.,. [ljQlflUlillllO 
T10 

�ODCAPINO 

IHTUIIOIIIDEIION ,.. 

DATE: ◄.1!.2C" 

PROJECT NO: 21025 

SITE PLAN 

A001 

40



41



July 12, 2023 

Development 
Review 
DP23-01 
Pierre's, LLC 
117 First, 110 
& 120 Lemon St 

Community Development Board Minutes

DP23-01 Application for Preliminary Development Plan as outlined in Chapter 27 
Article II Division 2 of the Unified Land Development Code of Neptune Beach for 
Pierre's LLC for the properties known as 117 First Street, 120 & 110 Lemon Street 
(RE# 172782-0000, 172783-0000 & 172784-0000). The request is to build a 
ground level deck structure with outdoor seating and an open-air bar and 
employee service area. This will be behind the existing building at 117 First St 
running east behind the buildings at 120 & 110 Lemon. The purpose of the deck 
structure is to provide a smoking area for patrons of Pete's Bar. 

Heather Whitmore, Community Development Director, went over the staff report. 

I. BACKGROUND: A preliminary development application has been submitted for
the properties known as Pete's Bar at 117 First Street, 120 & 110 Lemon Street
(RE# 172782-0000, 172783-0000 & 172784-0000). The existing building has
previously been used for a bar and it has a current building permit for interior
renovations. The applicant must obtain an exterior remodeling building permit and
Development Order for the outdoor improvements.

The property has a Comprehensive Plan Town Center Land Use designation and is 
zoned Central Business District. Restaurants and Bars with outdoor seating are 
permitted in this district. 

The building was built in 1931 and Pete's Bar was established in 1933. The existing 
building is 3,956 square feet with 76 of seats. The deck is approximately 1,700 
square feet with 117 seats. The new total number of seats including the deck will 
be 193. The deck area was previously asphalted and dirt/gravel and used for storage, 
outdoor seating and smoking. 

The request is to build a ground level wood slatted deck structure with outdoor 
seating, smoking area, open-air serving counters, an employee service area, and 
storage area. This will be behind the existing building at 117 First St running east 
behind the buildings at 120 & 110 Lemon St. 

The deck is a controlled area attached to the existing building with an access gate. 

The two enclosed counter serving areas will be attached to existing commercial 
structures bordering the deck. The small storage and employee area will be attached 
and behind the existing restaurant. The storage addition is off of the kitchen and will 
not be used for seating. 

The site currently has 30 parking spaces and two handicap spaces. The handicap 
spaces are ADA compliant. 27-540 Parking Requirements requires 1 parking space 
per 4 seats for restaurants and bars. Section 27-540 ( 1) permits a 50% parking 
reduction for uses located in CBD. The new total number of seats including the deck 
will be 193 and therefore the site requires a total of 49 parking spaces. The site 
requires 1 bicycle space, and 3 are provided. Section The sites 30 spaces is 19 
space short of the required 49 spaces. 

The applicant has requested a Historically Significant parking exemption from the 
Community Development Board as permitted in Sec. 27-540 (b) of the Land 
Development Code to provide an additional required 19 parking spaces. The 
Community Development Board may exempt, in whole or in part, any Historically 
Significant property from providing required parking. 

42

NBCityClerk
Highlight

NBCityClerk
Highlight



43



44



45



CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: Agenda Item #8A, Ordinance No. 2023-04, Second Read and Public 
Hearing, An Ordinance Amending the Operating Budget for the City of Neptune 
Beach, Florida for Fiscal Year 2023, Beginning October 1, 2022, and Ending 
September 30, 2023. 

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor Elaine Brown 

DATE: August 2, 2023 

BACKGROUND: 

The NBPD recently promoted one of their Officers to the rank of Sergeant. 
This individual will now be responsible for overseeing and managing the 
operations of the Mobility Management depa1tment. There are unused 
funds in the Mobility Management budget to fund this promotion and 
assignment of new job duties.  

The Finance Department has successfully conducted interviews for 
Accounting Technician and Staff Accountant roles. The candidates will 
assist with daily tasks and finalize audits, payroll, and accounts payable. 

The ordinance was passed at First Read on June 20, 2023. 

BUDGET: See Budget Amendment Request 

RECOMMENDATION: Consider Adoption of Ord. No. 2023-04 

ATTACHMENT: Ordinance No. 2023-04, 
Budget Amendment Request 

Agenda Item #8A

Ord. No. 2023-04

Amending FY 23 Budget

46



 
 
INTRODUCED BY: 
 
MAYOR BROWN 
  

 
 
  

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-04  

 
A BILL TO BE ENTITLED 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 
NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023, BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 
2022 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Neptune Beach adopted an operating budget for fiscal year 2023, 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the nature of budgetary systems and those day to day decisions affecting 
such budgetary systems requires adjustments from time to time. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF NEPTUNE BEACH, 

FLORIDA, that: 
 

Section 1. The Fiscal Year 2023 Final Budget be Amended as shown on the attached Budget 
Amendment Request. 
 

Section 2.  The Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage by the City 
Council 
 
VOTE RESULTS OF FIRST READING: 
 
 Mayor Elaine Brown YES 
e Vice Mayor Kerry Chin YES 
 Councilor Lauren Key YES 
 Councilor Nia Livingston YES 
 Councilor Josh Messinger YES 

 
Passed on First Reading on this 20th  day of  June, 2023. 
 
VOTE RESULTS OF SECOND AND FINAL READING: 
 
 Mayor Elaine Brown  
 Vice Mayor Kerry Chin  
 Councilor Lauren Key  
 Councilor Nia Livingston  
 Councilor Josh Messinger  

  
Passed on Second and Final Reading on this ___  day of __________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 Elaine Brown, Mayor 
  
 
 

 
 

47



Page 2  Ordinance No. 2023-04 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Catherine Ponson, CMC 
City Clerk 

 

 
 
 

 

Approved as to form and correctness:  
 
 
 
 

 

  
Zachary Roth  
City Attorney  

 

48



49



50



51



52



53



CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: Agenda Item #8B,  Ordinance No. 2023-05, First Read and Public Hearing, An 
Ordinance Amending Section 6-31, Regarding Dogs on the Beach to Establishing 
Consistency with Atlantic Beach; Clarifying Leash Requirements; Requiring 
Certain Protections for Dogs; Providing for Severability; Providing for an Effective 
Date. 

SUBMITTED BY: Councilor Nia Livingston 

DATE: August 2, 2023 

BACKGROUND: 

Neptune Beach restricts time periods during which dogs are permissible 
on the Atlantic Ocean Beach.  

Atlantic Beach does not currently restrict the time periods for dogs on the 
beach.  

To remedy the confusion along the beaches and also establish provisions 
for water, shade and to prohibit electric and remote collars, the attached 
proposed ordinance is being presented. 

The proposed ordinance was discussed at the June 20, 2023 workshop 
and forwarded for First Read 

BUDGET: N/A 

RECOMMENDATION: Consider Ordinance No. 2023-05 at First Read 

ATTACHMENT:     Ordinance No. 2023-05 

Agenda Item #8B

Ord. No. 2023-05

Dogs on the Beach

54



Ord. No. 2023-05 Page 1 

INTRODUCED BY: 

COUNCILOR LIVINGSTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-05  

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 6-31 REGARDING 
DOGS ON THE BEACH TO ESTABLISHING 
CONSISTENCY WITH ATLANTIC BEACH; CLARIFYING 
LEASH REQUIREMENTS; REQUIRING CERTAIN 
PROTECTIONS FOR DOGS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6-31 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Neptune Beach, the City regulates the presence of dogs on the Atlantic Ocean Beach 
adjacent to the City; and  

WHEREAS, the City restricts time periods during which dogs are permissible on 
the Atlantic Ocean Beach; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Atlantic Beach does not currently restrict the time periods 
during which dogs are permissible on the Atlantic Ocean Beach; and  

WHEREAS, the City’s Animal Control/Service Officer has observed confusion on 
the part of persons walking dogs across the city limits between the City and the City of 
Atlantic Beach who are unaware of the differences between the respective Codes of 
Ordinances; and  

WHEREAS, elimination of time restrictions on the presence of dogs on the 
Atlantic Ocean Beach will eliminate such confusion, assist the Animal Control/Service 
Officer in the performance of their duties, and provide for a more predictable regulatory 
scheme regarding the matter; and  

WHEREAS, the City’s Animal Control/Service Officer has also observed that 
dogs brought to the Atlantic Ocean Beach are frequently not provided with a means of 
potable water or shade, potentially causing harm to the animals; and  

WHEREAS, the City desires to establish provisions to protect the health, safety 
and welfare of such animals by instituting certain requirements for dogs to be brought to 
the beach for a significant period of time; and  

WHEREAS, the City’s Animal Control/Service Officer has also observed the use 
of electric collars and remote collars on dogs brought to the Atlantic Ocean Beach; and 

WHEREAS, such devices provide insufficient control of dogs to protect members 
of the public enjoying the Atlantic Ocean Beach; and 

55



Ord. No. 2023-05 Page 2 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Neptune Beach, Florida finds and 
declares that this ordinance is in the best interest of the public health, safety and 
welfare of the citizens and residents of the City, that it advances a significant and 
important governmental interest, and that it furthers the City’s performance of municipal 
functions and rendering of municipal services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA, THAT: 

Section 1. Amending Section 6-31 of the City of Neptune Beach Code of 
Ordinances. Section 6-31 of the City of Neptune Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

(a) Dogs are permissible on the Atlantic Ocean Beach adjacent to the city
year-round. during the following time periods:

(1) At any hour from October 1st through March 31st; and

(2) During the hours of 5:00 p.m. through 9:00 a.m., from April 1st through
September 30th.

(b) In addition to the above provisions, all owners, custodians and/or persons
responsible for and in control of any dog(s) on the beach must comply with
following:

(1) Each such dog must be fastened to a suitable leash of dependable
strength not to exceed twelve (12) feet in length and the leash must be
held or controlled by that person at all times. Electric collars, remote
collars, or other non-physically connected collars or leashes do not comply
with this requirement. The person must control a leash physically
connected to the dog.

(2) Any person having a dog on the beach during the above-enumerated
hours must carry with and on such person suitable materials and utensils
with which to remove from the beach any fecal matter deposited by such
dog and must remove any fecal matter immediately upon its deposit by the
dog under the person's supervision and control.

(3) Each such dog must have affixed to its collar a current rabies inoculation
tag evidencing the dog has been properly inoculated against rabies within
the past year. The civil penalties for violation of this chapter shall be those
set forth in section 6-5.

(4) If dog and the person responsible for such dog’s presence on the beach
are in the Atlantic Ocean together, the dog shall be allowed to swim
unleashed and then immediately put back on the leash before returning to

56



   
 

Ord. No. 2023-05  Page 3 
 

the beach. This does not include walking the dog in the water. Tide pools 
are not considered part of the Atlantic Ocean and dogs in tide pools must 
on-leash. 

 
(5) Any person spending more than 30 minutes on the beach must provide a 

source of potable water and shade to the dog. 
 

(c) The civil penalties for violation of this chapter shall be those set forth in section 6-
5. 
 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
word of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held or declared to be unconstitutional, 
inoperative or void, such holding or invalidity shall not affect the remaining portions of 
this Ordinance, and it shall be construed to be the legislative intent to pass this 
Ordinance without such unconstitutional, invalid or inoperative part therein.  
 
Section 3.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become immediately upon 
passage by the City Council. 
 
 
VOTE RESULTS OF FIRST READING: 
 
 Mayor Elaine Brown  
 Vice Mayor Kerry Chin  
 Councilor Nia Livingston  
 Councilor Josh Messinger  
 Councilor Lauren Key  
  
Passed on First Reading this ________ day of _____________, 2023. 
 
VOTE RESULTS OF SECOND AND FINAL READING: 
 
 Mayor Elaine Brown  
 Vice Mayor Kerry Chin  
 Councilor Nia Livingston  
 Councilor Josh Messinger  
 Councilor Lauren Key  
  
 
 
Passed on Second and Final Reading this ______ day of _________, 2023. 
 

57



   
 

Ord. No. 2023-05  Page 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Elaine Brown, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST:  
  
  
Catherine Ponson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

 

  
Approved as to form and 
correctness: 

 

  
  
Zachary Roth, City Attorney  
  
 

58



CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: Agenda Item #8C, Ordinance No. 2023-06, First Read and Public Hearing, 
An Ordinance of the City of Neptune Beach, Florida, Amending Chapter 2, 
Article VI, Section 2-377, Competitive Bidding; Written Contracts, Providing 
for Severability; and Providing an Effective Date 

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor Elaine Brown 

DATE:   August 2, 2023 

BACKGROUND: 

The ordinance places the threshold for requiring Council approval for 
expenditures at $25,000. 

This was the amount prior to 2016 and was changed to $9,999.00. This 
reverts the amount back to $25,000. 

The proposed ordinance was discussed at the July 17, 2023 Council 
Workshop and moved forward for First Read 

BUDGET: N/A 

RECOMMENDATION: Consider Ordinance  at First Read 

ATTACHMENT: Ordinance No. 2023-06 

Agenda Item #8C

Ord. No. 2023-06

Spending Threshold

59



 
 
INTRODUCED BY: 
MAYOR BROWN 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-06 

 
A BILL TO BE ENTITLED 

 
AN ORDINANCE  OF THE CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE VI, SECTION 2-377, COMPETITIVE 
BIDDING; WRITTEN CONTRACTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Neptune Beach desires to protect its citizens 
by diligently updating the Code of Ordinances of the City of Neptune Beach, and  
 

WHEREAS,  in 2016, the threshold for requiring City Council approval for expenditures 
was reduced from $25,000 to $9,999.00, 

 
WHEREAS, since 2016, there have been significant increases in prices occasioned by 

numerous factors, including COVID-19, inflation, supply chain issues, and other matters; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has observed that the current threshold makes 

administration of the City’s business unwieldy, requires matters to be delayed, and otherwise 
impairs the City’s ability to perform its functions, and determines that reestablishing the prior 
threshold is appropriate. 

   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEPTUNE 
BEACH, FLORIDA, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Amending Chapter II, Article VI, Section 2-377 of the City of Neptune Beach 
Code of Ordinances. Section 2-377 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Neptune Beach, 
Florida, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
 Section 2-377.  Competitive bidding; written contracts. 
 

(a) Before making any purchase or contract for supplies, materials, equipment or 
contractual services, opportunity shall be given for competition, as prescribed herein. 
All expenditures for supplies, materials, equipment or contractual services involving 
more than, nine thousand, nine hundred ninety-nine dollars ($9,999.00) twenty-five 
thousand dollars ($25,000.00) excluding automobiles, shall be made on a written 
contract, as prescribed herein, and such contract shall be awarded to the lowest and 
most responsible bidder, if awarded. 
 
An emergency purchase is required when the city experiences an emergency that 
warrants the immediate delivery of goods or services and in doing so, are unable to 
comply with the competitive bidding provisions. 

 
The city council has determined that approval under this provision is automatically 
granted when: 

 
(1)The public's health, safety or welfare requires the immediate delivery of goods 
or the performance of services. 

60



Ord. No. 2023-06  Page 2 
 

 
(2)The award of any such contracts is made pursuant to the provisions of 
competitive bidding. 
 
(3)Contracts are issued in response to a formal declaration of an emergency by 
the governor or mayor. 
 
(4)Approval of the purchase shall be made at the next scheduled meeting of the 
city council. 

 
(b) The formal bid procedure defined in subsection (a) is not required in the following 

cases: 
 

(1) When the city council, by a vote of the majority of those members present, 
waives a formal bid procedure; 

 
(2) When the goods or services to be procured are procurable from only one (1) 

source, such as contracts for telephone service, electrical energy and other 
public utility services; books, pamphlets, periodicals, specifically designed 
business and research equipment and related supplies; 

 
(3) Where the services required are for professional, artistic skills or insurance, 

pursuant to a written contract; 
 

(4) In emergencies involving public health, safety or where immediate expenditure is 
necessary for repairs to city property in order to protect against further loss of or 
damage to the city property to prevent or minimize serious destruction of city 
services; 

 
(5) Contracts for the maintenance or servicing of equipment, which are made with 

the manufacturer or authorized service agent of equipment when the 
maintenance or servicing can best be performed by the manufacturer or 
authorized service agent where such a contract would otherwise be 
advantageous to the city; 

 
(6) When the goods or services are procured from other governmental agencies or 

their contracts; 
 

(7) Purchase and contracts for the use or purchase of data processing equipment or 
data processing systems software and reproduction equipment; or 

 
(8) When the goods or services are procured from government-related state-wide or 

national associations. 
 

(c) None of the exceptions detailed above shall void the city's responsibility to procure 
all goods and services at reasonable and competitive rates. 
 

 Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of 
this Ordinance is, for any reason, held or declared to be unconstitutional, inoperative or void, 
such holding or invalidity shall not affect the remaining portions of this Ordinance, and it shall be 
construed to be the legislative intent to pass this Ordinance without such unconstitutional, 
invalid or inoperative part therein.  
 

61



Ord. No. 2023-06  Page 3 
 

Section 3.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become immediately upon passage 
by the City Council. 
 
 
VOTE RESULTS OF FIRST READING: 
 
 Mayor Elaine Brown  
 Vice Mayor Kerry Chin  
 Councilor Nia Livingston  
 Councilor Josh Messinger  
 Councilor Lauren Key  
  
Passed on First Reading this ________ day of _____________, 2023. 
 
VOTE RESULTS OF SECOND AND FINAL READING: 
 
 Mayor Elaine Brown  
 Vice Mayor Kerry Chin  
 Councilor Nia Livingston  
 Councilor Josh Messinger  
 Councilor Lauren Key  
  
Passed on Second and Final Reading this ______ day of _________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Elaine Brown, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST:  
  
  
Catherine Ponson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

 

  
Approved as to form and correctness:  
  
  
Zachary Roth, City Attorney  
  
 
 

62



 

Agenda Item 9A

CONB 2023-02

City Hall Roof Repair

63



64



NexGen Restoration and Roofing Bid

65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



Advanced 

91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: Water Reclamation Facility – Bid of Wastewater Plant 2 
Improvements 

SUBMITTED BY: Deryle Calhoun, P.E. 
Public Works Director 

DATE: August 1, 2023 

BACKGROUND: City of Neptune Beach entered into a consent order with Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection to correct violations of its 
wastewater permit, primarily regarding Total Nitrogen exceedances. 

CONB engaged Dewberry Engineers, Inc. in December 2021 to provide 
consent order support, and to provide planning, permitting, design, bid and 
construction phase services for Plant 2 modifications necessary to provide 
nitrogen removal capability.  In addition, Plant 2 electrical and control 
panels will be moved out of the flood plain and provide for future relocation 
of Plant 1 equipment. 

Dewberry has presented 90% plans and specifications for staff review and 
currently anticipate Plant 2 improvements ready for bid in August. 

Current budget for this work is $2,400,000 in FY24.  

BUDGET: FY23 revised budget 401-4335-535-60-62 Improvements – 
Buildings is $1,909,999.96 with $1,906,939.83 remaining.  
Additionally, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds were 
budgeted in FY23 at 001-0000-332-10-00 ($3,635,695.92)  

RECOMMENDATION: Approve bidding of Plant 2 improvements 

ATTACHMENT: None 

Agenda Item #10A

Wastewater Plant 2 Improvements

116



CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: Water Reclamation Facility Plant 1 – Operations Study 

SUBMITTED BY: Deryle Calhoun, P.E. 
Public Works Director 

DATE: August 2, 2023 

BACKGROUND: CONB has an active consent order with the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP) for violation of its water 
reclamation facility permit with respect to Total Nitrogen and Total 
Phosphorus. Plant 2 is currently off-line pending construction 
improvements. Plant 1 has been treating all flow while struggling to 
perform and will be required to contribute to permit limits even after 
Plant 2 improvements are complete. 

Hazen and Sawyer completed a study which reviewed historical 
operations data and developed an operational model of the plant 
(BioWin) which permits considerations of improvements. 

During the study, an aeration header blew apart which led to 
additional operational challenges.  As a result, a decision to replace 
the IFAS media or not will be necessary. Estimates for replacement 
are in the $1M range. 

This requested study would further evaluate the biological nutrient 
removal (BNR) process capabilities and other items as noted in the 
proposal. 

BUDGET: Sewer Operations 401-4335-535-30-31 / Professional Services 
FY23 Budget = $587,000.04, Available = $440,219.77 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Phase 2 with Hazen and Sawyer in the amount of 
$34,810.00 

ATTACHMENT: Phase 2 Scope 

Agenda Item #10B

Plant 1 Operations Study

Phase 2

117



Exhibit A 

 
 
Neptune Beach Scope_Phase 2.docx  
 Page 1 

ENGINEERING SERVICES PROPOSAL FOR 

City of Neptune Beach  

WRF PROCESS EVALUATION AND OPTIMIZATION  

August 2, 2023 Phase 2 FINAL 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Hazen and Sawyer, P.C. will perform the following tasks in association with the process evaluation and 

optimization at the Neptune Beach WRF. 

Task 6 – Clarifier Flow and RAS Flow Hydraulic Control and Constraints:  Operations staff have reported 

significant issues in controlling influent flow, RAS and blanket levels in the secondary clarifiers.  Hazen 

will evaluate options for improved control of RAS, WAS, and internal recycle flows and conceptual 

modifications if required to improve control. Assumes elevation data from record drawings are accurate. 

The task includes: 

• Conceptual level assessment of implementing a splitter box vs. utilizing control valves on 

existing piping.  A conceptual level cost will be developed for each option to provide a 

magnitude difference.  The assessment will identify key considerations (pros and cons) for each 

alternative. 

• Conceptual review of the equalization piping configuration proposed by the City.  Hazen will 

review the feasibility of the piping configuration to serve both Plant 1 and Plant 2.  The review 

does not include an evaluation of pump hydraulics or detailed design elements. 

• Operational guidance for influent flow, RAS, and internal recycle flows assuming the 

equalization basin is online. 

Evaluations are focused on hydraulic and mechanical reviews and do not include siting, structural, 

electrical, or instrumentation and control considerations.  Detailed cost estimates are not included. 

Task 7 – BNR Optimization Evaluation: The results from the historical data review and the BioWin 

model will be used to evaluate BNR optimization options. In addition, an initial estimate of the capacity 

limitations, aeration requirements, and recommended conceptual modifications for the existing 

Neptune Beach Plant 1 BNR basins will be provided. BNR optimization options will consider the future 

impacts of having Plant 2 in operation. 

The task also includes evaluation and recommendations for feed equipment and control for MicroC.  

Evaluation outcomes include conceptual pump sizing and guidance for dosing based on influent flow 

118



Exhibit A 

 
 
Neptune Beach Scope_Phase 2.docx  
 Page 2 

with an option for feed-forward nitrate-based control.  Hazen will model changing the feed location of 

Micro C to the second anoxic tank under design flows. 

Task 8 –Workshop: Hazen will conduct a virtual 2-hour workshop with Neptune Beach staff to review 

the results and recommendations from Tasks 1-7.  

Task 9 – Immediate Assistance / Calls: Hazen will provide on-call support for WRF operators. A total of 4 

hours for this task is included.  

Task 10 – Existing Aeration Evaluation: Hazen will review the existing blower piping and hydraulic 

conditions to assess the feasibility of aerating both the IFAS and proposed anoxic tank diffusers using a 

common blower header served by the existing blowers.  Record drawings, equipment information, and 

photos collected during Phase 1 will be used as the best available information for review. 

This task does not include evaluating the electrical capacity for improvements. The City is responsible for 

design and installation of the air header based on the current scope. 

TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

The work described in Tasks 6 through 10 of this Scope of Services will be completed within 120 days of 

receipt of a written notice-to-proceed.  

COMPENSATION 

Hazen and Sawyer, P.C. proposed to provide the above services to Neptune Beach for a not-to-exceed 

lump sum of $34810 dollars. 

AUTHORIZATION 

Hazen and Sawyer, P. C.  Neptune Beach 

By:  By:   

Name: Andre Dieffenthaller  Name: Richard Pike  

Title: Vice President  Title: Neptune Beach City Manager  

Date:   Date:   

119



CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: LDC Updates 

SUBMITTED BY: Heather Whitmore, AICP, Community Development Director 

DATE: August 7, 2023 

BACKGROUND: Land Development Code Updates to Bring Before Council for 

Discussion: 

LDC Section 27-332: Home-based Businesses 

LDC Section 27-335 and 27-336: Recreational/Commercial Vehicles in 

Residential Districts 

This item was brought before the Council on May 1, 2023. The intent of the 

amendment is to add Sections 27-335 and 27-336: Recreational/Commercial 

Vehicles in Residential Districts back into the LDC. It appears these important 

code sections were inadvertently deleted in the recent LDC update. 

Staff has updated the proposed language for these amendments since the May 

1, 2023 meeting and now seeks Council feedback on the recent text updates.  

In order to address recent concerns regarding commercial vehicles parked in 

residential areas, staff has recommended several amendments to the previous 

text “27-336: Parking of commercial vehicles in residential districts.”  

Specifically, the amendment clarifies the definition of commercial vehicles 

as any motor vehicle more than 5,500 pounds and used for commercial 

purposes. The amendment also limits parking in residential areas and 

parking commercial/heavy vehicles associated with home-based 

businesses.  

The amendment to LDC Section 27-336 regulating parking in residential 

areas associated with home-based businesses required a minor amendment 

to Section “27-332: Home-based Businesses” to prohibit the loading and 

unloading of commercial vehicles in conjunction with home-based business 

activities in residential areas.  

Agenda Item #10C 
LDC Updates

120



BUDGET: NA 

RECOMMENDATION: Review, discuss, make recommendations

ATTACHMENT: Exhibits: 

A. 27-332 Home-based Business: Proposed text (including strikethrough

and underline attachment)

B. 27-335 and 27-336 Recreational/Commercial Vehicles: Proposed text

(including strikethrough and underline attachment)

121



Sec. 27-332. - Home-based businesses. 

This section acknowledges the ability of residents to conduct small-scale home-based businesses that 

are secondary to the primary use of their residence, in accordance with F.S. § 559.955. This section also 

provides regulations to preserve the character of residential neighborhoods. 

(a) As an accessory use, the activities of the home-based business must remain secondary to the 

property’s legal use as a residence. The home must remain consistent with the surrounding residential 

area as viewed from the street, without additional client or consumer entrances for the home-based 

business. External modifications to a home to accommodate a home-based business must conform with 

the residential character and architectural aesthetics of the neighborhood. 

(b) An employee or proprietor of the business must live in the home. Up to two (2) non-resident 

employees or independent contractors may also work at the business. The business may also have 

remote employees that neither live in the home nor work on-site. 

(c) The business may not conduct retail transactions from a structure other than the home; however, 

incidental business uses, and activities may be conducted at the residential property. 

(d) Additional parking spaces are not required for the business, but any on-site parking spaces that serve 

the business must comply with requirements of this code. Any vehicles or trailers parked at or near the 

business must be parked in legal parking spaces that comply with all restrictions in this Code that apply 

to the home, and they may not be parked over a sidewalk or on any unimproved surfaces at the 

residence. Heavy equipment (commercial, industrial, or agricultural vehicles, equipment, or machinery) 

shall not be parked or stored where it would be visible from the street. or neighboring property in any 

residential district except as may be required for normal loading or unloading of such vehicles and during 

the time normally required for service at dwellings, or  except for at structures or activities permitted in 

such residential districts by the terms of this chapter. 

(e) No signs are allowed for the business; signs are regulated by article XV of chapter 27. 

(f) The business must comply with all local, state, and federal regulations with respect to the use, 

storage, or disposal of any corrosive, combustible, or other hazardous or flammable materials or liquids, 

including the requirements in section 23-60 of this code regarding prohibited substances. 

(g) Home-based businesses may be restricted further on land that is subject to deed restrictions when 

such documents are valid and recorded in the public records of Duval County. 

Formatted: Font color: Auto, Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Font color: Auto, Not Strikethrough

122



Sec. 27-332. - Home-based businesses. 

This section acknowledges the ability of residents to conduct small-scale home-based businesses that 

are secondary to the primary use of their residence, in accordance with F.S. § 559.955. This section also 

provides regulations to preserve the character of residential neighborhoods. 

(a) As an accessory use, the activities of the home-based business must remain secondary to the 

property’s legal use as a residence. The home must remain consistent with the surrounding residential 

area as viewed from the street, without additional client or consumer entrances for the home-based 

business. External modifications to a home to accommodate a home-based business must conform with 

the residential character and architectural aesthetics of the neighborhood. 

(b) An employee or proprietor of the business must live in the home. Up to two (2) non-resident 

employees or independent contractors may also work at the business. The business may also have 

remote employees that neither live in the home nor work on-site. 

(c) The business may not conduct retail transactions from a structure other than the home; however, 

incidental business uses, and activities may be conducted at the residential property. 

(d) Additional parking spaces are not required for the business, but any on-site parking spaces that serve 

the business must comply with requirements of this code. Any vehicles or trailers parked at or near the 

business must be parked in legal parking spaces that comply with all restrictions in this Code that apply 

to the home, and they may not be parked over a sidewalk or on any unimproved surfaces at the 

residence. Heavy equipment (commercial, industrial, or agricultural vehicles, equipment, or machinery) 

shall not be parked or stored where it would be visible from the street or neighboring property in any 

residential district  except for at structures or activities permitted in such residential districts by the 

terms of this chapter. 

(e) No signs are allowed for the business; signs are regulated by article XV of chapter 27. 

(f) The business must comply with all local, state, and federal regulations with respect to the use, 

storage, or disposal of any corrosive, combustible, or other hazardous or flammable materials or liquids, 

including the requirements in section 23-60 of this code regarding prohibited substances. 

(g) Home-based businesses may be restricted further on land that is subject to deed restrictions when 

such documents are valid and recorded in the public records of Duval County. 

123



Sec. 27-336. - Parking of commercial vehicles in residential districts. 

Commercial vehicles shall not be parked in any residential district except as permitted for 

home-based business according to the restrictions in Sec. 27-332 or as may be required for 

normal loading or unloading of such vehicles and during the time normally required for 

service at dwellings, or at structures or activities permitted in such residential districts by 

the terms of this chapter. The term “commercial vehicle” shall refer to any motor vehicle 

more than 5,500 pounds curb weight, unless excepted in this section, used primarily for a 

business or commercial purpose and not used primarily for personal, non-business 

transportation. The term “commercial vehicle” shall not be deemed to include law 

enforcement vehicles or recreational or utility vehicles or vehicles such as pick-up trucks, 

vans, or cars, even if they include decals for the business, if they are used by the property 

occupant on a daily basis for normal transportation and are not used at the property for 

commercial purposes. 

 

Commercial vehicles do not include those for which their parking at a residential property is 

ancillary to the residential use of the property. Examples of indications that the commercial 

purpose is primary, rather than ancillary, include, but are not limited to, more than one 

vehicle displaying the information of a commercial business being parked at the same 

property, the loading of employees or equipment on the residential property or adjacent 

right of way other than the residents of such property, and the parking of the vehicle with 

displays of information of a commercial business associated with a home-based business as 

described in Chapter 559, Florida Statutes on the right of way adjacent to a residential 

property or on unimproved surfaces at the property. 

 

 

Any vehicle with more than two axles and four regular-sized tires shall be considered a 

commercial vehicle. Any vehicle that utilizes anything other than tires for locomotion (e.g., 

skids, belts, or similar items) shall be deemed commercial equipment and be prohibited. 

 

 

 

124



CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

STAFF REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM: Civil Service Board  

SUBMITTED BY: Jillian McCann, HR Coordinator 

DATE:      08/02/2023 

BACKGROUND: 

If a Neptune Beach Police Department staff member faces 
disciplinary action, they have the right to request a hearing before 
the City of Neptune Beach Civil Service Board. The City Council is 
obliged to evaluate the necessity for a Civil Service Board per 
Ordinance No. 2015-09 and nominate two employees to serve on the 
board. The employees themselves will elect the third board member. 

BUDGET: 

RECOMMENDATION: To assess the requirement for the Civil Service Board and select two employees 
who have served for over a year to form the board. 

ATTACHMENT: Copy of Ordinance  

Agenda Item #10D

Civil Service Board

125



DIVISION 3. - CIVIL SERVICE BOARD 

Footnotes: 

--- (18) --

Editor's note- Ordinance No. 92-1-8, adopted August 3, 1992, set out provisions for a civil service board for the city, 

designating said provisions as §§ 2-256-2-265. For classification purposes, the editor has redesignated same as division 3 

herein. 

State Law reference- Civil service system, Florida Constitution art. Ill, § 14. 

Sec. 2-476. - Established. 

A Civil Service Board for the City of Neptune Beach, Florida, is hereby established. 

(Ord. No. 92-1-8, § 1, 8-3-92) 

Sec. 2-477. - Composition, qualifications and terms of office. 

(a) Upon a determination of need by the city council, the civil service board shall be initiated and

called to order as set forth herein.

(b) The civil service board shall be composed of three (3) members.

(c) The third member whose term shall be one (1) year shall be elected to membership by vote of

all employed employees under the civic service of the city. The election shall take place no later

than August 14, 1992, and thereafter be held on an annual basis. The votes shall be counted in

public by the city manager, city clerk and city attorney or their designees on the day of said

elections.

(d) All members of said board shall serve without compensation.

(e) Whenever vacancies shall occur, a person qualified shall be appointed by the mayor and

approved by the city council to fill such vacancies for the unexpired term, with the exception of

the elected member. The vacancy of the elected member shall prompt a new election by the

employees covered by the division.

(f) No person who has been convicted of a crime, or who has been within one (1) year prior to his

appointment or election an officer or employee in any remunerative capacity of the city shall

be eligible for appointment or election to the board.

(Ord. No. 92-1-8, § 1, 8-3-92; Ord. No. 1993-10, § 1, 10-4-93; Ord. No. 2015-09 , § 1, 6-1-15) 

Sec. 2-478. - Meetings. 

The board shall hold one meeting as is deemed necessary by the board or as directed by the city 

council or city manager. 

126



127



128



129



SPONSORED BY: 
COUNCILOR MESSINGER 

RESOLUTION NO.  2023-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
INSTRUCTING STAFF AND LOBBYISTS TO ACTIVELY 
PURSUE ADDITIONAL FUNDING MECHANISMS FROM THE 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE; PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION OF 
RECITALS, REPEAL OF PRIOR INCONSISTENT 
RESOLUTIONS AND COUNCIL DECISIONS, SEVERABILITY, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Neptune Beach (the “City”) has significant expenses projected to 
be necessary for maintenance of quality of life and infrastructure; and  

WHEREAS, funding mechanisms entirely within the control of the City, such as millage 
rate increases, will not be sufficient alone; and 

WHEREAS, Florida law and the City’s agreements provide other mechanisms for raising 
revenue necessary to cover the City’s expenses; and 

WHEREAS, these include, but are not limited to, the creation of a community 
redevelopment area, revisions to the City’s interlocal agreements regarding proportions of tax 
revenue shared between the City and the City of Jacksonville, and other sources; and 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City to actively pursue 
such mechanisms in the short term. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEPTUNE BEACH, FLORIDA, THAT: 

SECTION 1.  Adoption of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are deemed true and material 
parts of this resolution and are fully incorporated herein by reference. 

SECTION 2. Instruction to Staff and Lobbyists.  The City Council of the City of Neptune 
Beach instructs staff and the City’s lobbyists to prioritize and actively seek implementation of a 
community redevelopment area, revisions to the City’s agreements with the City of Jacksonville 
regarding revenue sharing, and other funding mechanisms that may be available. The instruction 
is that such efforts be prioritized as a short term goal to establish these additional funding sources. 

SECTION 3. Repeal of Prior Inconsistent Resolutions and Council Decisions. All 
prior resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of 
the conflict.   

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this resolution 
should be held invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, said determination shall not be held to 
invalidate or impair the validity, force, or effect of any other section, sentence, phrase, or portion 
of this resolution not otherwise determined to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional. 

130

Agenda Item #10E

Res. No. 2023-08

Funding Sources



Resolution No. 2023-08 

SECTION 5. Effective Date. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
passage and adoption by City Council. 

AUTHENTICATED this   day of  , 2023. 

Elaine Brown, Mayor 

Catherine Ponson, City Clerk 

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency: 

Zachary R. Roth, City Attorney 

Page 2 of 2 

131


	Agenda
	3-Minutes
	5-City Manager Report
	7A-DP23-01, Pete's Bar
	8A-Ord. No. 2023-04, FY23 Budget
	8B-Ord. No. 2023-05, Dogs on Beach
	8C-Ord. No. 2023-06, Spending Threshold
	9A-City Hall Roof
	10A-Wastewater Plant 2 Improvements
	10B-Plant 1 Operational Study-Phase 2
	10C - LDC Updates
	10D-Civil Service Board
	10E-Res. No. 2023-08, Funding Sources



